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3{arnntonton ßoarl of Elucatíon
566 Old Forks Road

Hammonton, NJ 08037
Phone 609-567-7000 * Fax 609-5614420

Website: www.hammontonps.org

Dr. C. DAN BLACHFORD
S uperintendent of Schools

November 17.2016

Honorable President and
Members of the Board ofEducation
Town of Hammonton School District
Atlantic Counfy, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Hammonton School District (District) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 20L6, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the âata and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to prãsent fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of ftre Disftict. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been
included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, ttre District's organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial statements and
schedules, management's discussion and analysis, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis. The District is_required to undergo an annual single audit in conformitywith the provisions oithe
Single Audit Act of 1996 and the Title 2 Il.S. Code of Federal Regilations part 200, Uniform
Adminßtrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and the New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Sing[e Audit foUcy for Recipients oj Federal
Grants, State Grants ynd State Aid Payments. Information related to this iingle uudit, in.íuding the
auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable lãws and regulationi and
findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of tnis report.

BARBARA S. PRETTYMAN
B usi ness Administrator/Board Secretary



I).REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Town of Hammonton School District is an
independent reporting entity as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. All funds and account groups ófth" District are included
in this report. The Town of Hammonton Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District,s
reporting entity.

The- District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels pre-K through
twelve. These include regular as well as special education ior^handicapied children. The District
completed the 2015-2016 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of \,627 

"tud"nts, 
which is 42

students abo_ve the previous year's average daily enrollment. The following details the ciranges in the
student enrollment of the Dishict over the last ten years.

tr'Íscal
Year

2015-2016
2014-20t5
2013-20t4
2012-2013
20tt-2012
2010-2011
2009-2010
2008-2009
2007-2008
2006-2007
200s-2006

Average Daily
Enrollment

3,627
3,585
3,623
3,595
3,540
3,521
3,420
3,362
3,265
3,294
3,367

Percent
Chanee

1.01
(.e7)

1.55
.54

2.95
t.72
2.97
(.88)

Q.T7)
r.99

2l ECONOMIC COND.ITION AND OUTLOOK: The amount of money a district spends is not the
sole indicator of how well the educational program is for the students. Despite this, in Hammonton, we
are probably only a v9v few years â\¡/ay from not being able to maintain oir ability to effectively éducate
our students. At that time, it is likely that the spending cap of Z%will have to go entirely to incréases in
health benefits. We will not have funds for any other incrLases. We are at the minimum number of
teachers, administrators, and support staff that we need to provide the students with a thorough and
efficient education. Any reductions in personnel would deôrease student learning and or the health and
safety of the students. The NJ Departrnent of Education provides an analysis ofáO5-tøBudgeted Costs
Amount Per Pupil. Hammonton spends $11,149 and is the lowest spending of 103 districts.

The Hammonton schools are highly effective as reflected in our classroom practices, formative
assessments of student learning, and the NJ State Assessments. According to the Point pleasant patch
analysis of PARCC scores, Hammonton is the 3'd highest district in South-Jersey. We are slightly behind
dishicts that spend over $3,000 more per child than we do. The Asbury park pråss also did a thorough
analysis of PARCC scores in comparison with district factor groups (DFG) and we were above our DFG
in 17 of 19 categories.

The Hammonton Public Schools will continue to use every possible technique to provide the students
with an efficient education, as well as, a thorough education.



3) MAJOR IMTIATfVES: There are several new initiatives for 2016-2017 school year. Hammonton
will continue with staff development and monitoring in the areas of differentiated insìruction, Sheltered
Instruction Observation Protocol (SIOP), Collins Writing, and Kid Writing. Some other initiatives that are
designed to improve student academic accomplishmentsãre as follows:

' 1t our Early Childhood Education Center (ECEC), Waren B. Sooy Elementary School (WES),
Hammonton Middle School (HMS), and Hammonton High Schooi6UtS) we improved àur
alignment in English Language Arts (ELA) and Math Cuiriculum to the newlv released
Curriculum Frameworks fro¡n the NJDOE and the PARCC Assessments and ihe CCCS ELA and
Mathematics.

At ECEC and WES we adjusted the pacing in ELA and Math (PARCC Assessments and the
CCCS Mathernatics).

lo more effectively teach science, we developed and improved our science curriculum for grades
6 to 12 (HMS and FIHS). In our primary gradãs we deveioped science units of study based on
Building Blocks science Kits (pARCC Assessments and the cccs science).

In Hammonton High School, our faculty updated all levels of Spanish Cuniculum at High School
based on new textbooks series. They also updated the music cun'iculum to incorporate acoustic
guitars in Music Theory-andTechnology, added an advanced level of Computer Animation 1:d
!9ugl), and incorporated a 10-Day Art Challenge incorporated into Fine Arts Curiculum (CbSS:
World Language and fine arts).

4) INTERNAL AÇCQUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal controli designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure thaiadequate accounting data arecompiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally ãccepted accounting principles
(GAAP)' The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, uriu*n"" ihut
these objectives are-met' The concept ofreasãnable ässurance recognizes that: (l) the cost ofa control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of cosìs.and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws anà
regulations related to those programs. This internál control structure is àlso subject to pèriodic evaluation
by the District management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal awards and state financiál 

"rrirtun""programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5l BTIDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls' The objective of these budgetary controls is io ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied.in-the annual appropriated budgãt approved by the voters of th" municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the siecial revenue fund, and t¡å ¿eút
seruice fund. Project-length budgets are approveã for th" capital improvements accounted for in the
capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for ihe fiscál year is reflected in the financial
section.



An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or *è lncluded ris re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30, 2016.

6l ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Acðounting St¿ndard-s Boarä
(GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups.
These funds and account groups are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note l.

7l DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30, 2016, the Districfs outstanding debt issues included
$26,099,000 of general obligation bonds. The proceeds of the bond issues *"r. ur"d to provide funds for
the construction of the High School and Early Childhood Center and also for capital improvements to the
Middle School and W.E.S. Elemenrary School.

8) CASII MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute
as detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements," Note 1 and 2. The Distri"i tt* adopted a cash
management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under
the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDp6"¡.-GUDPA was enacted in
7970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in
New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories
Iocated in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordancè with the Act.

9) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Hammonton Board of Education is a member of the New Jersey
Schools Insurance Group (NIJSIG). The program provides school districts with a long-term alternative tt
the conventional insurance market as a means of stabilizing the otherwise cyclical nature of insurance
expenditures. The Fund provides its member districts with ttre following.ou"räg"'

l. Property

2. Equipment Breakdown;

3. General and Automobile Liability;

4. Worker's Compensation;

5. School Leaders Errors and Omissions Liability;

10) OTIIER INF'ORMA'TION:

A) fndependent Äudit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Nightlìnger, Colavita & Volpa,
PA was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in itate statutes, the audit
also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the related Uniform
Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report.
The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.



11) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Town of Hammonton Board of
Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school
district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
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â,f)
.ß /\ lLl
-r/-v.J->
'Barbara 

S. Prettyman
School Business Administrator/

Board Secretarv
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November 17,2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Report on the X'inancÍal Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Town of Hammonton School District in the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Town of Hammonton School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Administration and Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

9



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education in the County of Atlantic, State of
New Jersey, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Re quire d Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, schedule of the School District's proportionate
share of the net pension liability and schedule of the School District's contributions, identified in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Inþrmation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and.are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for
pulposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Administrative R.equirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular l5-08, Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

A Profes s io nal Ass o ciatio n
l0

NIGHTLINGER. COLAVITA & VOLPA Certitied Public Accountants



Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fìnancial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditins Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 17,2016 on
our consideration of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integralpart of an auditperformed in accordance
with Governments Auditing Standards in considering Town of Hammonton Board of Education's intemal
control over frnancial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, p.A.

W
Raymond Colavita, C.P.A., R.M.A.
Licensed Public School Accountant

No.915

A P rofessio nal Asso ciatío n
ll

NIGHTLINGER. COLAVITA & VOLPA Certilied P u blic A ccou nÍanls



Required Supplementary Information
Part I



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Town of Hammonton School District ("District") annual financial
report presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during
the fiscal year that ended on June lO, ZOtø. Please read it in cónjunction with the
transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District's financial statement.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$3,800,751. This amount represents Net Position, which decreased by $478,803
from the previous year end.

The District's total net position of governmental activities totaled $2,837,024.

General revenues accounted for $34,90 8,415 in revenue , or 67Yo of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants,
contributions and capital grants accounted for $17,549,696 or 33o/o to total
revenues of $52,458, 10 1.

o Total net assets of governmental activities decreased by $519,518, made up of
changes in cash and cash equivalents, various receivables and various liabilitiés.

' The district had $51,28 4,201 in governmental expenses, of which $ 15,856,268 of
these expenses was ofßet by program specific charges for services, grants or
contributions. General revenues, primarily Federal and State aid and property
taxes of $3 4,908,415 adequately provided for govemmental activity programs.

' . The General Fund had 547,560,096 in revenues, $5g,707 in prior year
adjustments and 547,637,649 in expenditures. As a result, the General Fund
balance decreased by $18,846.

OVERVIE\ry OF' THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This arurual report consists of four parts - management's discussion and analysis (this
section), the basic /ì.nancial statements, required supplementary ìnþrmation, and an
optional section that presents combíning statements for special revenue, proprietary, and
fiducìary funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District.

The first two statements are government-wide financíal statements that provide
both long-term and short-term information about the District's overall financial
status.

The remaining statements are fundfinancial statements that focus on individual
parts of the District's government, reporting on the District's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements.

t2



like instruction were financed in the short term as well as what remains for
future spending.

information about the activities the District operates like businesses, such
as the food service areaand latchkey program.

relationships - like the unemployment trust fund - in which the District
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the
resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
financial statements and provide more detailed datá. The statements are followed by a
section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the
information in the financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of
net position includes all of the govemment's assets and liabilities. All of the current
yeat's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and,how they have
changed. Net position - the difference between the Districtis assets and liabilities - is
one way to measure the District's financial health, or posítíon.

r Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.o To assess the overall health of the Dishict you need to consider additional non-
financial factors such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the
condition of the District's facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories:

Governmental actívíties - most of the District's basic services are included here,
such as instruction, transportation, administration, and plant operations. property
taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.
Business-type activitíes - the District charges fees to customers to help it cover
the costs of certain services it provides. The District's food servic. *d latchkev
programs are included here.

13



Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most
significant funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the
District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular
pulposes.

The District has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in
governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash ønd other financial assets that
can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and Q) the balances left at year-
end that are avaíIable for spending. Consequently, the govemmental funds
statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the District's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the govemment-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that
explains the relationship (or differences) between them.
Proprtetary funds - Services for which the District charges customers a fee are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-
wide statements, provide both long- and short-term financial information. In fact,
the District's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its
business-type activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flows.
Fiduciary funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees'
unemployment compensation plan. It is also responsible for other assets that -
because of a trust arrangement - can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The
District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used
for their intended pury)oses. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported
in separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the District's government-
wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a comparative sunmary of the School District's net position for the
years ended in 2016 and 201 5.
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Assets
Curent and other assets
Capital assets, net

Total assets

Deferred Outflows

Liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows

Net position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues
Properly Taxes
Grants and Entitlements
Other

Total Revenues

Program Expenses
Instuction
Support Services

Tuition
Pupils and Instructional Staff
General Administration, School

Administration, Business
Operation and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Interest on Debt
Business Type Activities

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Table I
Net Position

2016 2015

s10,834,415 12,329,936
38,645,284 39,760,877

49,479,699 52.090.813

2,409,492 657,093

45,010,653 43,529,592
2,500,309 4,L63,311

47,510,962 4'1,692,903

577,468 775.439

13,521,359 13,271,952
8,566,519 9,202,910

(t8,284,127) (t7,24s.308)

$3,800,751 4,279,554

Table2
Changes in Net Position

20r6 20t5

$11,044,910 10,740,009
6,504,776 6,959,293

18,590,006 lg,l7g,g05
15,918,801 t6,992,546

399,609 211,623
52,459,101 52,973,266

29,407,217 29,126,620

2,240,799
6,502,957

4,869,957
4,',|94,990
2,358,923
1,109,565
t,654,046

l,g72,5Lg
6,795,710

4,275,347
4,321,309
2,lg6,gg7
1,132,063
r,683,617

52,938,247 51,504,080

15
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Business-type Activities

Operating revenues of the District's business-type activities decreased $19,276, non-
operating revenue increased $56,618 and expenses decreased by $29,571over the prior
year.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for
services and grants offsetting those services. Table 3 shows a comparison of the total
cost of services and the net cost of services. The net cost shows the financial bwden that
was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these fimctions.

Revenues
Instruction
Support services:

Tuition
Pupils and instructional staff
General Administration, School

Administration, B usines s
Plant operations/maintenance
Pupil transportation

Interest on long term debt
Total expenses s51,284,20t 35,427,933 49,920,463

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S F'UNDS

The School District's major funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. All governmental funds had total revenues of $52,834 ,440 and. expenditures
of 552,739,421. The net change in fund balance for the year was an increase of $95,019.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As further explained in the Footnotes to the Financial Statements, annual appropriated
budgets are prepared in the spring ofeach year for the general, special revenue and debt
service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office uod, as a Type II School
District, are approved by the voters arurually. Transfers of appropriationJ that do not
exceed IÙYo on a cumulative basis may be made by Board resolution at any time during
the fiscal year. Transfers of appropriations that exceed l0%o on a cumulative basis must
be approved by the Commissioner of Education. The District is permitted to encumber
funds throughout the year for purchases ordered but not yet received. Any open
encumbrances as of June 30ft carry over to the next fi.scal year and are added to the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget.

Table 3

Total cost of
Services 2016

s29,407,21r

2,240,799
6,502,957

4,969,957
4,794,990
2,359,923

Net Cost of
Services 2016

14,970,946

2,076,241
5,922,674

4,557,302
4,651,291
2,139,924

Total Cost of
Services 2015

29,126,620

l,g72,5lg
6,795,710

4,275,347
4,321,309
2,196,gg7

Net Cost of
Services 2015

14,613,526

1,9 I 1,0 l7
6,114,102

3,949,724
4,164,066
1,993,623
1,132,063

33.777.121
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapÍtal Assets

At the end of 2016, the District had invested $38.6 million in a broad range of capital
assets, including land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment.

Land
Construction in progress
Site improvements
Bldgs and Bldg impr.
Machinery & equipment
Total

Detailed information
financial statements.

Governmental
Activities

2016 2015
324,909 324,909

0 3,952,399
694,255 962,846

35,731,600 32,919,526

Business-type
Activities Total

20t6 2015 2016
324,909

0
694,255

35,731,600

20t5
324,909

3,952,399
962,946

32,818,526
1,584,407 1,554,271 310,114 347,927 t.894.521 1,902,198

38335,fr0 39ADg50 T0,Ll4 347,9ù 38,645,294 39,760,877

about the District's capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the

Long-term Obligations

All bonds are authorized in accordance with State law bv
the end of the current fiscal year, the District had totãl
$26,099,000.

the voters of the District. At
bonded debt outstanding of

Balance
6/30/t5 Issued

Balance
6/30n6

Governmental Activities
Bonds payable
Compensated absences

Payable
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Compensated absences

Payable
Total Business-type Activities

s27,464,000

3,022,191
$30.486.191

J.

66.252
66.252

1,365,000

1.365.000

26,099,000

3,099,443
2g,tg7,443

$31.486 638 32,124
32.124$3 r.486 638

More detailed information about the District's long-term obligations is presenterd in Note
7 tothe financial statements.

The legal debt limit for the District is $52,838,736 of which 526,739,736 or 49.39%o is
available to be authorizedby voter approval.
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ECONOMIC F'ACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The student population in the District has increased over the past 10 years, resulting in a
significant strain on the school district and the local taxpayers. The 2016-2017 state aid
funding increased however, based on the current state of the economy, we are unable to
predict what the future holds as far as future state aid allocations.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S F'INANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to present users (residents, receiving districts, and
creditors) with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the
District's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional
financial information, contact the District's business adminishator at 566 Old Forks
Road, Hammonton, New Jersey 08037.
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DISTRICT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
District. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of interna
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the District.



Exhibit A-1
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net position
June J0, 2016

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
lnternal balances
lnventory
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
lntergovernmental payable
Uneamed revenue
Net Pension Liability
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Refundíng of Long-Term Debt
Pension Deferred lnflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in capitalassets
Restricted for:

Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total net position

$7,455,513
$145,421

$2,424,988
$71,008

$324,908
$38,010,262
$48,432,100

739,357
1,133

61,739
(71,008)

6,264

310,114
1,047,599

8,194,870
146,554

2,486,727

6,264

324,908
39,320,376
49,479,699

$2,409,482 2,409,492

$1,655,449
$510,329
$124,685
$158,098

$15,791,086

$1,837,455
$27,349,988
847,427,090

$323,578
$253,890
$577,468

$13,211,245

$8,566,519
($18,940,740)

$2,837,024

35,739

16,010

32,124
83,872

1,691,187
510,329
124,685
174,109

15,791 ,096

1,837,455
27,382.112
47,510,962

323,578
253,890
577,468

310,114

653,613

____9æJn_

13,521,359

9,566,519
(18,287,127)

3,800,751

-

See AccompanyingNotes to the Financial Statements
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL D'STRICT ExhibitA_2

Statement of Activities
For the year Ended June 30, 2Ol6

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and

tndirect 
. ,__ - , Ghanges in Net position

ûperaung
Functions/P¡ograms Expenses charges for Grants and Governmentat Buslness-type

Governmentar act¡vities: 

- 

Tot

lnstruction:
Regular
Special education
Other inslruction

Support services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
General adminiskative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support serv¡ces
Unallocated benefits

lnterest on long-term debt

Total governmental activ¡ties

Business-type activities:
Food Service
After School Program

Total business-type aêtivities
Total primary government

No

$18,152,189 5,464,559 10,157,368 3,886,346 (9,573,034) (e,573,034)2,971,641 959,206 276,932 (3,653,915i (3,653,915)1,459,148 400,468 115,619 (,743,gg7) (1,743,gg7)

1,670,823 569,975 164,557 e,076,241) (2,076,241)5,097,904 1,405,053 580,283 (5,922,674) $,s22,674)1,927,826 607,814 217,544 (2,318,096i (2,318,096)805,505 100,471 2g,oo7 (876,969i (876,969)4,297,226 457,264 M3,7og (4,6s1,28i) (4,651,28í)1,927,502 431,321 94,971 124,528 (2,139,924) (2,13g,g24)1,199,619 ?28,622 66,004 (1,362,237i (1,362,237)10,665,253 (10,665,253) n1,ioe,s6s (r,1oe,s6;) (1,10e,s63)

1,575,856
78.190

I,654,046
s52,938,247

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes, net
Taxes levied for debt service

Federal and State aid not restricted
lnvestment Earnings
Miscellaneous lncome
Prior year adjustment

Total general revenues, special items, adjustments, extraordinary ¡tems and transfers
Change ¡n Net pos¡tion

Net Position-beginning
Net Position-end¡ng

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

709,738 900,247

16,506,429
2,083,577

15,918,801
17,502

323,399
58,707

34.',129 34,129
5,243

39,372

sr,\s?,ou nñ7r.7- ----TBõo-,%1-

1,343

16,506,429
2,083,577

15,918,801

18,845
323,399

58,707



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lndividual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the
individual fund in a format that segregates information by fund.
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

Exh¡blt B-1

Total
Governmental

Funds

3,480,825
3,974,688
1 ,477,508

145,421
2,424.988

1 1.503.430

1,655,449
1,406,500

124,685
1 58.098

3.344.732

General
Fund

$3,469,095
3,974,688
1 ,477,508

145,421

1,486,778

2,305

1.489.083

3,974,688
1,600,000
2,387,007

317,251

332,306

86,444

(840.528)

7,857,1 68
$9.346.251

Special
Revenue

Fund

131,066

122,380
1 58,098
411.544

Capital
Projects

Fund

8,271 3,458

Debt
Servlce
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and câsh equivalents
Cap¡tal Íeserve cash
lnterfu nd accounts receivable
Receivables. net
Rece¡vables from other govemments

Total assets

LIABÍLITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilíties:
Accounts payable
lnterfund payable
Due to other govemments
Unearned revenue

Total liabilit¡es

Fund Balances:
Resk¡cted:
Capital Reserve
Tu¡t¡on Reserve
Ma¡ntenance Reserve
Emergency Reserve
Special revenue fund

Assigned:
Des¡gnated for subsequent

yea/s expendítures
Comm¡tted:

Encumbrances
Unassigned:

General fund
Total Fund balances

Totaf liab¡l¡ties and fund balances

=?1?,599 358,s40 1,786,e0e

-_____l!rq¿Í_ ___99qÉ1l_ 1,71036?

37,605
1,406,500

1,444,105 0

(44,733)

3,974,688
1,600,000
2,38V,007

317,251
(44,733)

678,569

86,444

(840.528)

8,1 58.698

38,335,170

(13,635,494)

(510,329)

(29,511.O21\

$2.837.O24

346,262

-- (44,?33ì --- g46,162

____!qqÉl-l- ___i9q,99l
Amounts reported for governmenta! act¡vit¡es in the statement of
net posit¡on (A-1) are d¡fferent because:
Capital assets used in govemmental activit¡es are not f¡nanc¡al
resources ancf lherefore are not reported in the funds.

Pension Liabilities Net of Defered Ouffiows & lnflows

Accrued interest payments on long-term l¡ab¡l¡ties are not due and
payable in the curent period and therefore are not reported
¡n the funds.

Long-term l¡abil¡ties, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the cunent period and therefore are not reported
in the funds.

Net pos¡tion of governmental act¡vities

Sec Accompaying Notes to the Finacial Statements 2L



Exh¡b¡t B-2
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

StatementofRevenues, Expenditures, And Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 201 6

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Capítal
Projects

Fund

Debt Total
Service Governmental
Fund Funds

REVENUES

Local tax levy
Tuition charges
Transportation fees from other leas
lnterest earned on capital reserves
lnterest
Miscelfaneous
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other instruction

Supporl services and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Student & instruction related servíces
General administrative servíces
School adminishative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services
Unallocated Benefits

Debt service:
Principal
lnterest and other charges

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCINc SOURCES (USES)

Prior year adjustment
Total otherfinancing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance--July I
Fund balance-June 30

384,285

47,560,096 2,747,557 218 2,467,862

$16,506,429
10,157,368

94,371
7,934
9,350

323,399

20,403,106
58,1 39

14,988,155
2,820,809
1,396,175

1 ,581,196
4,702,333

789,706
1 ,790,I 86
4,043,281
1,765,000

840,089
12,032,281

(77,553)

58,707
58,707

(r8,846)

2,083,577 18,590,006
10,157,368

94,371
7,934
9,568

323,399
36,561

21,629,304
1,927,222

52,775.733

17,292,906
2,820,809
1,396,175

1 ,581 ,196
4,876,964

789,706
1,832,249
4,043,281
1,765,000

840,089
12,229,786

1,365,000
1,102,861

218

36,561
841,913

I,869,083

2,304,751

174,631

42,063

197,505

3.925 109.939

3,925 109,939

58,707
0 58,707

1,365,000
1J02361

888,438 24,682 (109,721\ 803,s9947,637,649 2,743$32 
-(109J21\ 

-2,46?,861 _, 52,?3r,421

I

1

0=!,979,0.1+ (48,658) 236,323
__$7.eqzJ_$ ______(44,73Ð __ 546ø

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 22



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances ofGovernmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30. 2016

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B_2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activ¡ties, fhe cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the period.

Deprecíation expense
Loss on disposal
Adjustment
Capital outlays

Repayment of long term debt ís an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long{erm liabilities in the statement of net posit¡on and is not reported in the statement
of activities

Premium on Bond Refunding is reported in governemental funds as another f¡nancing source.
However, in the statement of activities, the premium is reflected as a deferred oumow.

Payment of accrued interest on long term debt is an expenditure in the govemmental funds,
but the payment reduces the liabifity in the statement of net position and is not reported in the
statement of activities.

Pension contributions are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the contributions are adjusted for actuarial valuation adjustments,
including service and interest costs, administrative costs, investment returns, ånd
experience/assumption. This ís the amount by which net pension liability and defened
inflows/outflows related to pension changed during the period.

ln the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations)
are measured by the amounts earned during the year. ln the governmental funds, however,

expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid).
when the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the
reconciliation (-); when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an
addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position of governmental act¡v¡ties

Exhibit B-3

$95,019

(1,610,822)
(s4,683)
(12,516)
640,242 (1,077,779)

1,365,000

(323,578)

(6,704)

(505,223)

(66,253)

($519,518)

See Accompanying Noæs to the Financial Statements
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Exhibit B-4
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net position

'Til:ïfl;i:*

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable
lnventoríes

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment

Less accumulated deprecíation
Total noncurrent assets

Totalassets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
lnterfund Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Total líabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Totalnet position

Food
Service

Latchkey
Program

(Non Major
Fund)

98,105

Totals

739,357
61,739

1,133
6,264

g0g,4g3

967,347
(557,233)
310,114

_1,j_1_8,607

s641,252
61,739

1,133
6,264

7l0,3gg

747,990
(517,758)
230j22
940,510

99,105

119,467
(39,475)
79,gg2

178,097

71,009
32,929
16,010

71,009
35,739
16,010
32,124

154,990

2,910

32,124
151,970

151,970

2,910

2,910 154,990

230,122

558.418
$788,540

7g,gg2

95,195
175,197

310,114
0

653,613
963,727

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Exhibit B-5
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 20i 6

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Fund

Operating revenues:
Charges for services:

Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Special functions
Miscellaneous
Latchkey program revenue

Total operating revenues

Pperating expenses:
Cost of sales
Salaries
Employee benefits
Tuition
Generaf supplies & materials
Loss on disposal of assets
Other costs
Deprecíation

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:

State school lunch program
Federal sources:

National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
National school snack program
Food distribution program

lnterest and investment revenue
Total nonoperatin g revenues

Change in net position
Total net position-beginning
Total net position--ending

Food
Service

$352,384
314,768

40,513
2,073

709.738

Latchkey
Program

(Non Major Total
Fund) Enterprise

352,384
314,768

40,513
2,073

83,433 83,433
83,433 793,171

695,728
507,670
220,321

56J32
ooÂ

34,288
60,722

r,575,856
(866,1 18)

58,766
1,012
7,022
3,949

7,441
78,190
5,243

695,728
566,436
221,333

7,022
60,081

ooÃ

34,288
68,163

1,654,046
(860,875)

15,748

673,200
131,512

91

79,696
1,132

901,379
35,261

753,279

___$zqgÉ1r

211
5,454

169,733

15,748

673,200
131,512

91

79,696
1,343

901,590
40,715

923,012

______sæln_

211

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Exhibit B-6
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by non-capital fínancing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net íncrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Balances-beginning of year
Balances-end of year

Reconciliation of operating income/(loss) to net cash
provided/(used) by operating activities:

Operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net cash

provided/(used) by operating activitíes
Depreciation and net amortízation
Loss on dísposal of asset
Federal commoditíes
(lncrease)/Decrease in accounts receivable, net
Decrease in inventories
(Decrease)/lncrease in accounts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in interfund accounts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in unearned revenue
(Decrease)/lncrease in compensated absences payable

Total adjustments
Net cash províded/(used) by operating activities

813,920 813,920
813,920 0 813,920

(31,345) (31,345)
(31,345) 0 (31,345)

Food
Service

$712,757
(719,115)
(720,325\
(726,683)

Latchkey
Program

(Non Major Total
Fund) Enterprise

78,157 790,914
(70,251) (78e,366)
(11,431) (731,756)
(3,525) (730.208)

1.132
1,132

57,024
584,228

$641.252

211
211

(3,314)
101,419
98,10s

1,343
1,343

53,710
685,647
739,357

($866,1 18)

60,722
995

79,696
1,728

(3,102)
(1 1 ,1 0e)

5,092
1,291

95,243

7,441

1,947

2,450
(e,8ee)
(7,223)

(860,875)

68,163
995

79,696
3,675

(3,102)
(8,65e)
(4,807)
(5,e32)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Exhibit B-Z
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Fiduciary Net position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 20i6

Unemployment Private Purpose Agency
Compensation Trust Scholarship Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Payable to student groups

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in trust for unemployment

claims and other purposes

9287,798 48,102 487.507

287,798 49,102 497.507

10,604

184,941
302,666

10,604 0 497,507

$277,194 49,102

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Plan member
Total Contributions

lnvestment earnings:
lnterest
Net investment earnings

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims
Scholarships awarded

Totaldeductions
Change in net position

Net posítion-beginning of the year
Net position-end of the year

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment Private Purpose

$48,051
49,051

532 103
532

48,583

33,926

3,700
33,926

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30. 2016

103
103

14,657
262,537

3,700
(3,597)

51,699
48,102$277,194

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLINTING POLICIES

The Town of Hammonton School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and
is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Town of Hammonton School
District (District) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Th;
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting prinõiples. The more signincant of
the Board's accounting policies are discussed below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY:

The Town of Hammonton School District is a Type II district located in the County of Atlantic,
State of New Jersey. As a Type II District, the School District functions independently through á
Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. In
addition, one member is appointed from the Folsom School District and the Waterford School
District under a sending/receiving relationship, as required by the statutes. Effective with the
2013 fiscal yeat,the election of Board Members was moved to the general election in November.

The purpose of the district is to educate students in grades K-12 as well as providing educational
services for the Borough of Folsom students in grades 9-12 and the Tor¡¡nship õf Waterford
students in grades 7'12. Beginning with the 20ll-2012 school year the District was approved as
a Choice School. The Town of Hammonton School District had an approximate enrollment at
June 30, 2016 of 3,630 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entþ, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accountins and Financial Renorrino
Standards, is whether:

Based on the aforementioned criteria,the District has no component units.
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to X'inancial Statements
June 30.2016

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as
a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the
govemment-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either
governmental or business type. The District's general, special revenue, capital projects and debt
service activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's food service and
latchkey program are classified as business-type activities.

In the governmental-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns (a) arc presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements however, inter-fund balances between
the governmental funds and business-type activities are reflected as internal balances. The
District's net positions are reported in three parts-net investments in capital assets; restricted net
position; and unrestricted net position. The District first utilizes restriòted resources to finance
qualiffing activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
District's functions and business-type activities (food service and tatchkey). The functions are
also supported by general government revenues þroperty taxes, tuition, certain
intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. program
revenues must be directly associated with the function (regular instruction, special education,
student & instruction related services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants includé
operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants
column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue
(property taxes, fuition, interest income, etc.).

a. The District does allocate indirect costs such as depreciation expense, compensated
absences, bond issues costs, On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, and Reimbursed' TPAF Social Security Contributions.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the
change in the District's net position resulting from the current year's activities. Fiduciary funds
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2016

C. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ FTJND F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of selÊbalancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, ievenues and expendituresTexpenses.
The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or
business-type activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summaúied, into a single
column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum uiteria þercentage of the assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise
combined) for the determination of major funds. The non-major funãs are combined in a 

"olurrrnin the fund financial statements. The State of New Jeriey Department of Education has
mandated that all New Jersey School Districts must report all govemmental funds as major,
regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition of a major fund. However, the criteria aré
applied to the proprietary funds.

The following fi:nd types are used by the District:

1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances
of financial resources) rather than upon net income. Thè fo[owing is a description of the
governmental funds of the District.

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for afl
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for a specific purpose-. The special revenue
fund is specifically used to account for state and federai giant monies that have been
allocated to the District.
Capital projects funds are used to account for all financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The financial resources are derived
from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at aspecial election.
Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of ,eroùrce, for, and the
payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction and improvement programs.

b.

c.

d.
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to f inancÍal Statements
June 30,20L6

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund
balance:

Restricted - includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education.

Assigned - includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
pu-q)ose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator.

- Unassigned - includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or
restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund.
The District reports all amounts that meet the unrestricted General Fund Balance
Policy described below as unassigned:

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. When
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is
incurred for which committed, assigned or unassigned fund balance are available, the District
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fimd measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes
in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of
the proprietary funds of the District:

a.. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt
that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that
the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges
or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designated to recover similar
costs. The District operates a food service fund to provide a child nutrition program for
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the students of the district and a Latchkey Program to provide before and after school
care for school aged children in grades pre-K through 5.

3. Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
therefore are not available to support District programs. The reporting foõus is on net position
and changes in net position. They are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary
funds.

The District's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type
(pension, private pu{pose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for tire
benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and
cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the govèrnment, these funds arå not
incorporated into the government-wide statements.

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets
held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private
orgaruzations, other governments and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust Funds - are accounted for in essentially the same manner as the
governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Expendable Trust Funds account for assets where both the principal
and interest may be spent. Expendable Trust Funds include the Unemploymãnt
Compensation Insurance Trust and the Scholarship Fund.

Agency Funds - are used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf
of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve
measurement of results of operations. Agency funds include payroll and student
activity funds.

D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements.

The District-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary firnd and the fiduciary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year in which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recogniãed as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Net
positions are used as a practical measure of economic resources and the operating statement
includes all transactions and events that increased or decreased net positioni. Depreciation is
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charged as an expense against current operations and capital assets are reported net of
accumulated depreciation on the statement of net position.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as

sooá as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are cãnsidered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days after the end of the fiscal year. Revenue from federal, state and other
grants designated for payment of specific school district expenditures is recognized when the
related expenditures are incurred; accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded
as deferred revenues until earned. Expenditures are generally recorded when the related liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expendifures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when
payment is due.

The District applies only those applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for its
proprietary operations.

E. BUDGETS/BUDGETARY CONTROL:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special
revenue and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county offrce for approval and
are voted upon at the annual school election in November. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart
of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2(9). Transfers of appropriations may be made by
School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. However, any transfer that
cumulatively exceeds ten percent of the advertised budget category must receive the approval of
the County Superintendent of Schools.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For govemmental funds there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of
the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary pulposes
only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as
an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
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related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

Significant transfers approved by the Board of Education during the fiscal year were as follows:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources axe recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special ,gl,i"nu" fuà, *ì reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year-end as they do not constitute 

"xp"nditur"s 
or

liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances,
are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be
made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropiiation reflected in the
certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the c*rent fiscal year end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less atthetime of purchase and are stated at cost
plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with
maturities of one year or less when purchased are statedãt cost. All other investments are stated
atfair value.

Multiple Disabilities - Other Salaries 1 04,1 83

115,189
Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled - Within

Care and Upkeep of Grounds - Cleaning, Repair and
Maintenance Services

Student Transportation Services - Supnlies
Unallocated Benefits - Heatth Benefits

- Admin. Information Technolo
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New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute l8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit pubtic
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental
Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental
units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public
depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the
deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a
market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds,
to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has
pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of
their deposits to the Governmental units.

fnvestments

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated atfair value, (quoted
market price or the best available estimate). Interest earned on investments in the Capital
Projects Fund is recognized as a reserve to pay future debt service or transferred to the general
tund.

fnterfund Transactions

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the District-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as inter-fund transfers. Inter-fund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating
revenues/expenses in the Enterprise Fund. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditure/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.
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fnventories

Inventories, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures during
the yeat of purchase. Inventories in the enterprise fund are recorded at cost, computed on a first-
in, first-out method.

Capital Assets

The District has established a formal system of accounting for its capital assets. purchased or
constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated assets are reported as capital assets at
their estimated fait market value at the date of donation. Additions, improvements and other
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized,. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance aïe expensed as incurred. The capitaîization threshold used
by school districts in the State of New Jersey is $2,000.

All reported capital assets except for tand and construction in progïess are depreciated.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over their estimated nréfut lives. Useful tives
vary from 20 to 50 years for land improvements and buitdings, and 5 to 20 years for equipment.

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. sick leave) as directed by GovemmentaL
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated
Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services alieady rendàred and
not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to futor.
services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and
its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which
such events take place.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with
the District's personnel policies. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.
The District's policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick léave and carry forward the
fuIl amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by ttre áistrict for the
unused sick leave in accordance with the District'J agreements with the various employee
unions.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination payment method,
whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick leave that is exþected to becomé
eligible for payment upon termination. The District estimates its accrued compensated absences
liability based on the accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance shiet date by those
employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the
following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, in the Fund Financial
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Statements, all of the compensated absences are considered long-term and therefore, are not a
fund liability and represents a reconciling item between the fund level and District-wide
presentations.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received in the Special Revenue Fund before they have
been earned are recorded as unearned revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-wide
financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that once
incurred are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as
obligations of the funds.

However, contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are paid
from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial statements only to the
extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds are recognized as a liability
on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced by the outstanding
balance of any debt used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Net positions are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use, either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the School district, or through extemal restrictions
imp'osed by creditors, grantors, or law or regulations of other governments. The School
District's policy is to hrst apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Fund Balance Reserves

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the District classified governmental fund
balances as follows;

o Non-sPendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is
not in spendable form or because oflegal or contractual restraints.
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o Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
which are extemally imposed by providers such as creditors or amounts constrain"ã d,r"
to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

o Committed - includes fund balance amounts that arc constrained for specific purposes
that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of itre highist level
of decision making authority and does not lapse atyear end,.

o Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for speciflrc
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance may be
assigned by the Board of Education, Superintendent or Business Administrator.

' Unassigned - includes positive fund batance within the General Fund which has not been
classified within the above mentioned categories and. negative fund balances in other
governmental funds.

Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to
accrual and under New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is rèquired to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certifi"d, prior to the end of the
school year. The District records the entire approved tax ievy as revenue (ãccrued) at the start of
the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. In the proprietary funds,
operating revenues consist of revenues that are a directresult of the operations oith" progr*.
Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or cunent operation-s, are
reported as non operating revenue. With respect to grant ,"veoues, the provid", ,."ogrrir.,
liabilities and expenses and recipient recognizes receivables and revenu" *h"n the appiícable
eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Resources transmitted bèiore the
eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and uneamed revenue
by the recipient.

Expenditures

Fxpenses are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported
in the period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchasåd.

Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.
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Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal year \À/ere based on rates established by the receiving districts.
These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those results.

Allocation of Costs

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses such as
depreciation, compensated absences and employee benefits are allocated to functions but are
reported separately in the Statement of Activities.

H. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Change in Accounting Principles - As the result of implementing Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statements Nos. 68, the District restated the beginning net position in
the government-wide Statement of Net Position, effectively decreasing net position as of July 1,
2014 by 512,33I,862. The decrease results from recording the net pension liability offset by
deferred outflows.

I. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOTJNCEMENTS NOT YET EF'FECTIVE

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 73,
"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not V/ithin the
Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67
and 68". This statement effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 30,2016, will not have
any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In June 2075, the Governmental Accounting St¿ndards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 74,
"Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans". This
statement effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 30,2016, establishes new accounting
and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans. It is anticipated that this statement will not
have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 75,
"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions". This
statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 30, 2017. Although not
determinable, the impact of this statement on the net position of the entity is anticipated to be
significant.
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In August 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
77, "Tax Abatement Disclosure". This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15,2015, will not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In December 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement
No. 78, "Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension plans',.
This statement is efflective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015, will not have
any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In January 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement No.
80, "Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 14". This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2016, will
not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In March 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement No.
81, "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements". This statement is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 20l6,will not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In March 2016, the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement No.
82, "Pension Issues - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68 and No.73,,. This
statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15,20l6,will not have any effect on
the District's financial reporting, however will affect the disclosure of pension related items.

NOTE 2. _ INVESTMENTS

As of June 30,2016, the district had no investments. However, if the District had investments
they would be subject to the following risks.

Interest Rate Risk. The district does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
matwities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. However, New Jersey Statutes I8A:20-37 limits the length of tim" for mosi
investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk. New Jersey Statutes l8A:20-37limits district investments to those specified in the
Statutes' The type of allowable investments are Bonds of the United States of America or of the
district or the local units in which the district is located; obligations of federal agencies not
exceeding 397 days; govemment money market mutual funds; the State of New Jãrsey Cash
Management Plan; local government investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized.
securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The district places no limit on the amount the district may invest
in any one issuer.
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NOTE 3. _ CASH

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the School District's deposits may not be returned to it. The district's policy is based on
New Jersey Statutes requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based banking institutions
that participate in the New Jersey Govemmental Depository Protection Act (GÙDPA) or in
qualified investments established in New Jersey Statutes L8A:20-37 that arc treated as cash
equivalents. At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the District's deposits (cash and cash
equivalents) was 59,018,277 and the bank balance was $10,050,7g9.

As of June 30, 2016, the School District's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as
follows:

FDIC Insured

GUDPA Insured

Bank balance, June 30, 2016 $10,050,799

NOTE 4 _ RECETVABLES

Receivables at June 30,2016, consisted of other receivables (tuition, taxes and other), inter-fund
and intergovernmental. All receivables are considered collectible in full. A summary of the
principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows :

250,000

9,900,799

Governmental
Fund

Financial
Statements

Government
Wide

Financial
Statements

State and Federal Aid
Other

Total Receivables. Net

$ 2,424,989 $
1,622,929

2,496,727
146,554

4,047,917 $ 2,633,291

NOTE 5. INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Enterprise Fund at June 30, 20l6,consisted of the following:

Food
Supplies

$ 3,973
2,291
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance
June 30.2015 AddÍtions

Governmental Activities :
Capital assets that are not
being depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Site improvements
Bldg and bldg improve
Machinery & equipment
Tot¿l at historical cost

Less accum depr for:
Site improvements
Bldg and bldg improve
Machinery & equipment
Total accum deprec

Total capital assets being
depr, net ofaccum depr

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

Business-úype activities :

Equipment
Less accum depr for:
Equipment

Business-fype activities
capital assets, neú

324,909
3.8s2.399 (3,852,399)

4,177,307 Q,gszJgg)

Disposals /
Adiustments

Balance
June 30.2016

324,909
0

324.908

3,51I,272
52,309,909
6,279,439

62,099,520

(2,649,426)
(19,490,293)
(4,724,169)

Q6,962,979)

35,235,642

39,412,950

857,919

4,010,494
469,641

4,490,125

(168,591)
(r,097,4t0)

(344,82r)
(I,610,922)

2,969,303

__eqi{9ÉL

31,345

54,757
(94,683)
(39,926)

(54,757)

(54,757)

(94,683)

____€1é!iL

(2t,916)

20921

3,511,272
56,374,050
6,653,397

66,539,719

(2,917,017)
(20,642,450)

(5,069,990)
(29,529,457)

39,010,262

38,335 170

967,347

(557,233)(509,991) (68,163)

347927_ ___11Á!1!L ______ees)_ 310,1 14
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Depreciation expense as charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular instruction
Special education
Other instruction
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
General administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services

$ 1,610,822

NOTE 7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

825,337
t44,873
60,485
86,086

212,212
91,801
T5,T75
75,180
65,142
34,531

Balance
Amounts

Balance Due Within
6-30-15 fssued Retired 6-30-16 One year

Governmental Activities
Bonds & loans payable:

School bonds X 27.464.000
Other liabilities:

Compensated absences
Payable 3,022,191 66,252

Governmental activities long-
term liabilities

1,365,000 26,099,000 1,690,000

3,088,443 147,455

JWS]21 ___ iS2sZ __l2iÉlggg_ _2]87Aß _ r,837,4ss

3t,496 639

f 31,486 638

Business-type Activities :

Other liabilities:
Compensated absences

Payable
Business-type activities long-
term liabilities

32,124

32,124

Compensated absences and capiøl leases will be liquidated in the General Fund.

A. Bonds Payable:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of
usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are general obligation bonds.
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Description of Bonds Payable

At June 30,2016, bonds payable consisted of the following issues:

521,611,000 School Bonds dated 10/1512001payable in an¡rual installments through August 1,
2012. Interest is paid semiannually at a fixed rate of 4.75Yo per annum. The batanóe as of Jurr.
30, 2076 was $0. $7,385,000 of these bonds were refunded on 9/19/06. The net present value
savings amounted to $426,798. $10,890,000 of these bonds were refunded on 3/Zj/10. The net
present value savings amounted to $449,777.

$10,890,000 Refunding School Bonds dated 3/23/2010 payable in annual installments through
August 1,2025. Interest is paid semiannually atvarying rates between 2.00% and 5.00% pãr
annum. The balance as of June 30,2016 was $8,215,000.

$7,385,000 School Bonds dated 9/1912006 payable in annual installments through August l,
2030. Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 3.00% and,4.20%o peiano.tm. The
balance as of June 30,2016 was $200,000. $7,050,000 of these bonds were refunded on 5/ll/16.

$7,050,000 Refunding School Bonds dated 5/ll/2016 payable in annual installments through
August 1,2030. Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 2.00% and,3.25% per
annum. The balance as of June30,2016 was $7,050,000.

52,614,000 School Bonds dated 4/15/2006 payable in annual installments through July 15, 2021.
Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between4.25Yo and 4.30% per aruurm. The balance
as of June 30,2016 was $1,234,000.

$11,800,000 School Bonds dated 6/24/2010 payable in annual installments through July 1, 2030.
Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 3.25Yo and 4.125% per annum. The
balance as of June 30,2016 was $9,400,000.

Debt service requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30,2016 are as

Principal lnterest
Year ending June 30,

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

2022-2026
2027-2031

follows:

Total

1,690,000
1,505,000
1,550,000
1,600,000
1,655,000
9,299,000
9,910,000

$ __?q,09¿gqq

1,046,689
890,769
824,949
759,925
692,gtg

2,5r6,539
887,845

2,736,689
2,395,769
2,374,949
2,359,925
2,347,919

10,805,539
10,697,945
33,718,633
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B, Bonds Authorized But Not Issued:

As of June 30,2016 the Board had authorized but not issued bonds in the amount of $0.

NOTE 8. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees' Retirement
System, the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund or the Defined Contribution Retirement
Program which have been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey
Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey
Administrative Code, all obtigations of the systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey
should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly avai[able financial report thát
includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public
Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may
be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625 or the reports can be accessed on the internet at
http :/Âwvw. state.ru.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts_archive.htm

The Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established as of January 1, 1955, under
the provisions of N.J.S.A. 184:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disabiiity and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a
cost-sharing multiple- employer plan with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all
employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the
system's other related non-contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially
all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board ãf Bxamin"rr, *d
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professionaiand
certified.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and defened
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from
the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the TPAF. For this putpose, benefit payments (inctuding refunds of employee tontributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments ará
reported at a fair value.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (PERSI

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955, under
the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:l5A to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-
sharing multiple- employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time
employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality, school district, or public
agency, provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered
retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

D qlìne d C o ntr Ì b ut Ì o n Re t i r em e nt P r o gr am (D C R P.t

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July 1, 2008 under
the provisions of Chapter 92,P.L.2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq.).
The DCRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension fund. The DCRÞ
provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution
retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit
provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 43:l5C-l et seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance
with Chapter 92, P.L.2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008, plan members are required to contribute
5.5% of their annual covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under current law to make
temporary reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus plan assets in the
retirement system; however statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus
pension assets no longer exist. In addition to the employee contributions, the School District's
contribution amounts for each pay period are required to be transmitted to Prudential Financial
not later than the fifth business day after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay
period.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by
N.J.S.A. 43:l5A and 43.38, and N.J.S.A. 184:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten
years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Rétirement
benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be l/60 of the
final average salary for each year of service credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the
average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest threã years'
compensation if other than the final three years). Members may seek early retirement after
achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to
ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after the
member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides for specified medical
benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of qualifred service, as defined, or
under the disability provisions of the System. Members are always fully vested for their own
contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for ZYo of related interest
eamed on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.
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Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:I5A, Chapter 62,P.L.
of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee
contributions of 5.5%o of employees' annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The actuarially
determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death
benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-
contributing employer of the TPAF.

The School District's contributions to PERS for the years ending June 30,2016,2015,2014 were
$604,780,5572,931 and $512,082 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

During the fiscal years ended June 30,2016,2015 and20l4,the State of New Jersey contributed
53,427,459,52,72I,279 and 52,199,696 respectively, to the TPAF for post-retirement medical
benefits and NCGI Premium on behalf of the Board. Also, in accordance with NJSA 18A:66-66
the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board 51,499,270, $1,483,348 and $1,447,119 during the
same fiscal years for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF membeis as
calculated on their base salaries. These amounts, which are not required to be budgeted, have
been included in the financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account
group statements and schedules as revenues and expenditures in accordance in GASB 27.

Si gni.fr c ant Le gt s I atio n

Chapter 78,P.L.20L1, effective June23,20Il made various changes to the manner in which the
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and the Police and Firemen's Retirement (pFRS)
operate and to the benefit provisions of those systems.

Chapter 78's provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

. New members of the PERS hired on or after June 28, 201 1 (Tier 5 members) will need 30
years of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of Y¿ of lYo for each month that the member is under age 6s.

o The eligibility age to qualis for a service retirement in the PERS is increased from age
63 to 65 for Tier 5 members.

' The annual benefit under special retirement for new PFRS members enrolled after June
28, 2011 (Tier 3 members), will be 60% instead of 65% of the member's final
compensation plus IYo for each year of creditable service over 25 years but not to exceed
30 years.

o Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates increase from
5.5Yo of annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional lo/o phased-in over 7 years;
PFRS active member rate increase from 8.5Yo to I\Yo. For fiscal year 2013, the member
contribution rates increased in October 2011. The phase-in of the additional incremental
member contribution rates for PERS members will take place in Juty of each subsequent

I
I
li

..^_, .*,_*_,
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fiscal year.
. The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to

current and future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by
this law.

o New employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided health
benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of
coverage. The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee's annual salary
and the selected level of coverage. The increased employee contributions will be phased
in over a  -year period for those employed prior to Chapter 78's effective date with a
minimum contribution required to be at least l.5Yo of salary.

o In addition, this new legislation changes the method of amofüzing the pension systems'
unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay).

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-
administered retirement systems concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the
definition of compensation, the positions eligible for service credit, the non-forfeitable right to a
pension, the prosecutor's part of the PERS, special retirement under the PFRS, and employer
contributions to the retirement systems.

Also, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010 changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of
PERS from the amount of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it
returned the benefit multiplier for new members of PERS to 1/60ú from 1/55th, Ðd it provided
that new members of PERS have the retirement allowance calculated using the average annual
compensation for the last five years of service instead of the last three years of service. New
members of PERS will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one employer.
Pension service credit will be eamed for the highest paid position only. For new members of the
PFRS, the law capped the maximum compensation that can be used to calculate a pension from
these plans at the annual wage contribution base for social security, and requires the pension to
be calculated using a three yeat average annual compensation instead of the last year's salary.
This law also closed the Prosecutors Part of the PERS to new members and repealed the law for
new members that provided a non-forfeitable right to receive a pension based on the laws of the
retirement system in place at the time 5 years of pension service credit is attained. The law also
requires the State to make its full pension contribution, defined as ll7th of the required amount,
beginning in fiscal years 2012.

Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accident¿l and ordinary disabitity
retirement for new members of the PERS with disability insurance coverage similar to that
provided by the State to individuals enrolled in the State's Defined Contribution Retirement
Program.

Chapter 92,P.L.2007 implemented certain recommendations contained in the December 1,2006
report of the Joint Legislative Committee on Public Employee Benefits Reform; established a
DCRP for elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007; the newpension loan
interest rate became 4.69%o per yea"r, and an $8.00 processing fee per loan was charged, effective
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January l, 2008. The legislation also removed language from existing law that permits the State
Treasurer to reduce employer pension contributions needed to fund the Funds and Systems when
excess assets are available.

At Jtme 30,2016, the District reported a liabilþ for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability that reflected a reduction for State pension suppott provided to the District. The amount
recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State
support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District
were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability
Associated with the District

Total

40.683.913

$_40.693913

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 and the total pension liability to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the
District's proportion was 0.00%, which was no change from its proportion measured as of June
30,2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $1,438,661 and
revenue of $1,438,66_1 for support provided by the State. AfJune 30,21l6,the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TPAF from the
following sources:

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, which was rolled forward to June
30, 2015. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement:

Inflation Rate:

Salary Increases:
2012-2021:
Thereafter:

Investment Rate of Return:

2.5%

Varies based on experience
Varies based on experience
7.90%
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Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or
Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA.
Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active members are projected using Scale AA from
the base year of 2000 until the valuation date plus 15 years to account for future mortality
improvement. Post-retirement mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are projected
using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003 for females until the
valuation date plus 7 yearc to account for future mortality improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2012.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments (7.90% at June 30,2015) is determined by the State Treásurer,
after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions
and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of retum was
determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
US Cash
US Govemment Bonds
US Credit Bonds
US Mortgages

US Infl ation-Indexed Bonds
US High Yield Bonds
US Equity Market

Foreign Developed Equity
Emergency Market Equities
Private Real Estate Property
Timber
Farmland
Private Equity
Commodities
Hedge Funds - Multi Strategy
Hedge Funds - Equity Hedge
Hedge Funds - Distressed

Tørset Allocation
5.00%
t.75%

13j0%
2.r0%
t.s0%
2.00%

27.25%

12.00%
6.40%
4.25Yo

r.00%
r.00%
9.25%
t.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%

Lone-Term Expected Reøl
Rate of Return

53.00%
t.39%
2.72%
2.54%
t.47%
4.57%
5.63%

6.22%

8.46%
3.97%
4.09%
4.6t%
9.15%
3.s8%
4.59%
s.68%
4.30%

51



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to f inancial Statements
June 30,2016

Díscount rate. The discount rate used to measure the State's total pension liability was 4.l3Yo as
of June 30, 20L5. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.90Y0, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of June 30,
2015, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers
(State of New Jersey) will be made based on the average of the last five years. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected
future benefit payments of current plan members through 2027. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through
2027, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in
determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension tíability to changes in the
discount rate.
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liabilþ measured
as of June 30, 2015, calculated using the discount rate disclosed ubou" as well as what the
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (3.13%) or l-percentage-point higher (5.13%) than
the current rate:

Current
1olo Decrease Discount Rate 1olo Increase

(.3.t3%\ (4.t3%\ (s.r3%\

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary
net position is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Divisions of pensionr *â
Benefits financial report athttp:/lwww.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/f,rnancial-rprts-home.shtml.

Summary of Stgnificant Accounting Policies - For purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources ."lated to pênsions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the PERS and additions
toldeductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by PERS. For this pu{pose, benefit payments (including refunds of employeã
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit ìerms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferced Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $15,791,086 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of JunJ3O, 201s, and the
total pension liability to calculate the net pension liabitity was determined by an actuarial
valuationas of thatdate. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of alt participating employers, acfi;p1ially detãrmined. At J,-" 30,2015,
the District's proportion was 0.0703451934%o whichwas an increase of .0008551934% from its
proportion measured as of June 30,2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District rccognized.pension expense of $1,109,980. At
June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Differences between expected and acfual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments

Total

Collective deferred outflows of resources
Collective deferred inflows of resources
Collective net pension liability

Q.tron State-Local Group)
District's portion of net pension liability
Districtls-p r op of üon %o

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
s376,720
1,695,937

336,925 $253,990

$2.409.482 $2s3.890

6/30/20t4 6t30t20t5
s952,194,675 53,579,755,666

$1,479,224,662 $993,410,455

s18,722,735,003 522,447,996,119

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

13,011,915
0.06949794%

15,791,096
0.07034s19%

Actuarial assumptions . The collective total pension tiability for the June 30, 2015 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July I, 2014, which was rolled forward to
June 30, 2015. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation:
Salary Increases:

2012-20t2
Thereafter

Investment Rate on Return:

3.04%

2.15%-4.40% based on age
3.15%-5.40Yo based on age
7.90%
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Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healtþ Male and Female Mortality
Tables (setback I year for males and females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former
members with adjustments for mortality improvements from the base year of 2012 based on
Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Tables (setback 3 years for males and
setback 7 year for females) are used to value disabled retirees.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2074 valuation were based on the results of
an acfi;atial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2011. It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that acfual experience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than
anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial
statements.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected
rafe of return on plan investments (7.90% at June 30,2015) is determined by the Stut" Treas.rr"r,
after consult¿tion with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions aná
Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was
determined using a building block method in which best-estimat" r*ges of expected future real
rates of return (expected retums, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined tõ produce the long-1srm
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of retum by the targei asset
alloçation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30,2015
are summari zed inthe following table:

Asset Class
Cash
U.S. Treasuries
Investment Grade Credit
Mortgages

High Yield Bonds
Infl ation-Indexed Bonds
Broad US Equities
Developed Foreign Equities
Emerging Market Equities
Private Equity
Hedge Funds / Absolute Return
Real Estate (Property)
Commodities
Global Debt ex US
REIT

Tareet Allocatíon
5.00%
1.75%

r0.00%
2.t0%
2.00%
1.50%

27.25%
t2.00%
6.40%
9.25%
12.00%
2.00%
1,.00%
350%
4.25%

Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return

I.04o/o

r.64%
r.79%
1.62%

4.03%
3.25%
852%
6.88%
t0.00%
t2.4t%
4.72%

6.83%
5.32%
-0.40%
s.r2%

54



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30r2016

Díscount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension tiability was 4.90Yo as of
June 30, 2015. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
retum on pension plan investments of 7.9%o, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of June
30, 2015, based on the Bond Buyer Go 2O-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-
exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plær members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made based on the average of the last five years of contributions made in
relation to the last five years of recommended contributions.

Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2033. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit
payments through 2033, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments
after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's proportíonate share of the net pensìon liability to changes in the
discount rate.
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability measured
as of June 30, 2015, calculated using the discount rate disclosed above as well as what the
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 -percentage-point lower (3 .90%) or 1 -percentage-point higher (5.90%) than
the current rate:

Current
lolo Decrease Discount Rate lolo Increase

(3.e0%) (.4.e0%) (s.eow

$19,626,399 $15,791,096 $12,575,597

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

Pension plan fiducÌary net posítion. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary
net position is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Divisions of Pensions and
Beneflrts financial report at htþ://www.nj.gov/treasuryþnsions/financial-rprts-home.shtml.

NOTE 11. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of P.L. 1,987 and Chapter 6 of P.L. 1990 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity
Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to funil
post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25
years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L.2007, C.103 amended the law to
eliminate the frrnding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created
separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement
medical benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30,
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2015, there were 107,314 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the State
contributed $1.25 billion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through
contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, C.62. Funding of post-retirement
medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal
year 7994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 C.126, which provides free
health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (APB) who retired from
aboard of education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $214.1 million
toward Chapter 126benefits for 19,056 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2015.

NOTE 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until futue years. Amounts deferred under
the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The plan administrators are ¿rs follows:

Ameriprise Financial
American Century Services
ASPire Financial Services
TPAF Supplemental Annuity
Putnam Funds
Lincoln Investment Planning
Siracusa Benefits Program
Vanguard Investments
AXA Equitable Life Insurance Company
Great American Financial Resources

NOTE 13. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. sick leave) as directed by Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated
Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and
not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees eam the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future
services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and
its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which
such events take place.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with
the District's personnel policies. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and is capped
based on the various employee contracts.
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In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater
than one year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the
amount due in more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within
those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2016, a liabitþ existed for
compensated absences in the Food Service Program in the amount of 832,124.

NOTE 14. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Town of Hammonton Board of Education in a
prior year, which was certified for taxes, for the accumulation of funds for use as capiøl outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general
fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district's
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the Quatity Assurance
Annual Report (QAAR). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund
budget certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2.
Pursuant to NJAC 6:23A-14.1(9), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local
support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFp.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015
Interest Earnings
Budgeted Withdrawal
Ending balance, Jtme 30, 2016

s4,126,lrr
7,934

(159,357)

s3,974,699

The 2016-2017 Budget includes a withdrawal from the Capitat Reserve Account in the amount
of$435,157.

NOTE 15. EMERGENCY RESERVE

New Jersey Statute 184:7F-41(c) permits school dishicts to establish a current expense
emergency reserve in the general fund with deposits made to the account with voter approval,
beginning in the fiscal year 2008 budget process, or at year end by board resolution. ThiJ ieserve
account is to be used to finance future unanticipated (reasonably unforeseeable) general fund
expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education. The emergency resèwe balance
cannot exceed $250,000 or one percent of the district's general fund budget (which amounts to
5421,069 for the 2016 fiscal year) up to a maximum of $1 million, whichever is greater.
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V/ithdrawals require the approval of the Commissioner unless the withdrawal is necessarv to
meet an increase in total health costs greater than four percent.

The activity in the emergency reserve for the 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

$ 3 r7,25t

NOTE 16. MAINTENANCE RESERVE

New Jersey Statute 184:7G-9 permits school districts to accumulate funds for the required
maintenance of a facility in accordance with EFCFA. The balance may only be increased
through an appropriation in the annual general firnd budget certified for taxes. Upon completion
of a school facilities projects, districts are required to submit a plan for mainien*." ãf thut
facílity.

The activity in the maintenance reserye for the 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015
Interest Earnings
Ending balance, June 30, 2016

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015
Interest Eamings
Deposits - Board Resolution June 9, 2016
Budgeted Withdrawal
Ending balance, June 30, 2016

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015
Budget Appropriation
Ending balance, June 30, 2016

$ 316,619
633

$1,908,839
3,169

900,000
(325,000)

_s2;wg1_

$ 800,000
(800,000)

$0

The 2016-2017 Budget includes a withdrawal from the Maintenance Reserve Account in the
amount of $325,000.

New Jersey Statute permits school districts to accumulate funds for tuition adjustments. The
district shall make fuIl appropriation of the reserve for tuition adjustments in the second year
following the contract year.

The activity in the tuition reserye for the 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

New Jersey Statute permits school districts to accumulate funds for tuition adjustments. The
district shall make full appropriation of the reserve for tuition adjustments in the second year
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following the contract year.

The activity in the tuition reserve for the 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015
Budget Appropriation
Ending balance, June 30, 2016

Beginning balance, July 1,2015
Board Resolution, dated June 9,2016
Ending balance, Iwte 30,2016

$ 800.000

The 2016-2017 Budget includes a withdrawal from the Tuition Reserve Account in the amount
of $800,000.

New Jersey Statute permits school districts to accumulate funds for tuition adjustments. The
district shall make full appropriation of the reserve for tuition adjustments in the second yeár
following the contract year.

The activity in the tuition reserve for the 2016 fiscal year is as follows:

$ 800,000

0

$0
900,000

_q_!99{9q_

The District has a deficit flurd balance of $840,528 in the General Fund and $44,733 in the
Special Revenue Fund as of June 30,2016 as reported in the frmd statements (modified accrual
basis)' N'J'S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not madeuntil the following school budget year, districts must record the last ,tt. uid payment as
revenue, for budgetpurposes onl¡ in the current school budget year. The bill ptåuía., t"gui
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budgåt year. f";
intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognìtion (revenue,
expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes un asset,
the other govemment recognizes a liability. Since the State-is recording thã last state aiá
payment in the subse_quent fiscal year, the school district can not recognize the last state aid
payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State recorãs the payable. Due to
the timing difference of recording the last state aid páyment, the Special Revenue Fund balance
deficit does not alone indicate that the district is facing frnancial difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 arry negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance
that is reported as a direct result from a delay in the June paymãn4s) of state aid until the
following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jeisèy statuíe and regulation nor in
need of correction action. The District deficit in the GAAP fund; statement of $g+o,szg in the
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General Fund and 544,733 in the Special revenue fund is equal to or less than the last state
payment(s).

NOTE 21. FUND BALANCES

Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Reserve - As of June 30, 2016, there is a balance of $3,974,6gg in the Capital
Reserve Account of which $435,157 has been appropriated and included as anticþäted
revenue forthe year ended June 30, 2017.

Tuition Reserve - As of June 30, 2016, there is a balance of $800,000 in the 20l4lZ0I5
Tuition Reserve Account which has been included as anticipated revenue for the year
ended June 30, 2017; and $800,000 in the 2015/20l6Tuition R"r"*" Account.

Maintenance Reserve - As of June 30, 2016, there is a balance of $2,3g7,007 in the
Maintenance Reserve Account of which $325,000 has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Emergenc)' Reserve - As of June 30,2016, there is a balance of $317,251 in the
Emergency Reserve Account of which $0 has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Special Revenue Fund Deficit - As of June 30, 2016, the special revenue fund deficit is
544,733. The defrcit is a result from the delay in the páyment of stare aid until the
following fiscal year.

Debt Service Fund - As of June 30, 2016, there is a balance of $1 in the Debt Service
Fund of which 

99 h* been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the year
endedJune 30, 2017.

Assigned Fund Balance - As of June 30, 2016, 5332,306 has been included as anticipated,
revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Committed Fund Balance - As of Jun e 30,2016,586,444 is for year-end encumbrances.

Unassigned Fund Balance Deficit - As of June 30, 2016, the unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was a deficit of $840,528. The deficit is a result from thã delay in the payment of
state aid until the following fiscal year.

NOTE 22. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with NJSA I8A:7F-7, as amended, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance -Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey sthool åirtri"t, are required to
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reserye General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' Uuag.t. 1'fr"
excess fund balance at June 30,2016 is $0.

NOTE 23. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; elrors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liabilit)¡ Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage forpropert¡ liability and surety bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 20L6 theDistrict did
not incur claims in excess of their coverage and the âmount of coveragá ¿i¿ not significantiy
decrease.

- The District has elected to fund its New
{ersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance *i"r the "Benefit Reimbursement Method,,
Under this plan, the.District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund
for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its accouni with the state. The Districtis billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District
contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the Staie for benefits paid and the
ending (defrcit) balance of the District's expendable trust fund for the current and prior two
years:

Fiscal District Employee lnterest Amount EndingYear Contributions Contributions Earned Reimbursed Balancî2015-2016 $o 48,051 fi, A3,rn 277,tg42014-2015 0 47,456 S2Z i+t',t1e¡ 262,5372013-2014 0 46,559 40s þ{,z¡gj 256,345

The District is heavily reliant on local property taxation to fund the District operations and debt
service. Property taxes funded approximateþ 35Yo of the Districts 20IS-2b16 govemmental
operations.
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NOTE 25. INTERFLTND RECETVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following Interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30. 2016:

Fund
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Food Service Program

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Pavable

s 1,477,509
$ 1,406,500

71,009
s _Jt7J,sg!_s J!ry,sg!_

Interfi'mds were created throughout the year due to short term borrowings to cover cash flow
needs in the various funds. The interfunds between the govemmental funds and the business-
type activities are shown as Internal Balances on the govemmental-wide financial statements.
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REVENUES:

Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
Tuilion

Transportation Fees from Other LEA'S
lnterest eamed on Capital Reserves
lnteresl earned

M¡scellaneous

Total - Locâl Sources

State Sources:

Equalizet¡on Aid
Categor¡cal Specìal Educat¡on Aid
Categorical SecurityAid
Categor¡cål Transportation Aid
Special Educatlon Extraordinary Aid
Public School Cholce Aid
UnderAdequacy Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid
Per Pupil Growth Aid
Non Public Transpolation Aid
On-Behalf TPAF Non-Conlr¡butory lnsurance
On-Behalf TPAF pens¡on Contributions-post Retirement

Medical Contr¡butions (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Sociel Secu¡¡ty Contr¡butions (non_budgeted)

Tolal - Slate Sources

Federal Sources:
Med¡caid Reimbursement and unrestricied federal funds

Ol(¡)

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Ended June 30,20i6

original Budget F¡nal varience
Under/(Over)Budget Transfers Budget Adual F¡nqtfoAclual

$16,506,429
10,058,188 16'506'429

8o,ooo 10'058'188

3,800 80'000
3,800

10.000

26.658.417

11,214,703
.t,396,079

129,159

132,393

99,363
I,846,348

500,000

27,340
27,340

Total Revenues

0

10.000

26,658,417 27,098,851 44O,4g4

Exhlbit C-1

15,372,725

75,757

75,757

42,1 06,899

16,506,429

10,157,368

94,371

7,934
9,350

11,214,703
1,396,079

129,159

132,393

99,363

1,846,348

500,000

27,340
27,340

323.399 3l? 1qo

0

0

99,1 80

14,371

4,134
o ?qô

11,214,703
1,396,079

129,159
132,393

185,663

1,846,348

500,000
27,340
27,340

Ã Ãae

1,564,533

0

0 42,106,899

15,372,725

75,757

75,757

0

0

0

86,300

0

0

0

0

5,568

1,564,533

1,862,926 1,862,926
1,499,270 1,499,270

5,018,597

58,139 (17,618)

58,139 (17,618)

47,548312 5,441,413

(continued)



EXPENDITURES:

Cu¡rent Expense:
Regular Programs - lnstruclion:

Salaries of Teachers:

Kindergarten

Grades 1-s
G¡ades 6-8

Grades 9-12
Regular Programs - Home lnstruction:

Salar¡es of Teachers
Purchased Professlonal-Educational Services

Regular Programs - Undistr¡buted lnslrucl¡on:
Purchased Professlonal-Educat¡onal Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Teltbooks
Other Objects

Total Regular programs

Special Education - lnstrucl¡on:
Leam¡ng and/or Language D¡sabilities

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstruclion
General Supplies

Total Leaming and/or Language D¡sabilit¡es

Behavioral Dlsabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salar¡es for lnstruction
Purchased Professional-Educalional Services
General Supplies

Other Objecls

Total Behavioral Disabil¡ties

Multiple Disabitities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnslruclion
Purchesed Professional Educational Serv¡ces
Generâl Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Tolal Multlple Disabil¡t¡es

orÀ

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetery Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Ended June 30, 2016

original Budget Final Variance

Under/(Over)Budget Transfers Budget Aclual Final lo Aclual

585,715
4,152,040
3,508,204
s,700,740

85,000
102,000

28,915
23,550
24,910

I,334,795
84,500
11.600

15,641,969

346,410
29,790
2.000

378.200

405,447

140,657

0
3,800
1,700

(2s,100)
5,494

(26,71s)
(41,210)

59,199
(8s,ss0)

11,O44
(1 1,e67)

(7,660)

(412,s00)
6,111

250

560,615
4.157,534
3,481,485

s,659,530

144,1 99

16,050

39,959
I 1,583

'17,250

922,295
90,61 I
11,850

Exhlblt C-1

(529,008) 15,112,961

17,428 363,838
10,767 40,557

525 2,525

28,720 406,920

557,533
4,155,784
3,481,48s
5,657,530

143,599

15,252

33,093
4 040

12,632
849,438

66,513

9,337

3,082

I,750
0

2,000

600

798

6,866

5,624

4,618

72,857

24,098

2,513

33,180

(r2,oss)
a Ãôñ

0
(s0o)

362,302
237,339

ls0
19,200

3,300
1,000

14,988,15s 124806

363,838 o
40,557 o

623,291 ,t17,4O6 740,697 734,480 6,217

438,627

128,602
1,500

3,800
1,200

5,243
104,183

450

6,823

707

0

404,395

436,207

128,602
1,363

2,640

367,545
34'1,522

600

26,O23

4,007

2,525

2,525

2,420
0

aaa

1,160

1,200

367,545

338,831

544

25,037

. 2,391
'132

2,691

986

1,616

868

(continued)



Resource Room/Resource Center
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnslruction
Purchased Profess¡onal Educational Serv¡ces
General Supplies
Textbooks

Total Resource Room/Resource Center

Autism
Other Salar¡es for lnstruction
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

TotalAutism

Preschool Disabilities - part-Time

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstruclion
General Supplies

Total Preschool Disabilities - part-Time

Total Speclal Education - lnstrucl¡on

Bilingual Educatlon - lnstruclion:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Selarles for lnstruci¡on
Purchased Professional Educational Serv¡ces
General Supplies

Total B¡llngual Education - lnstruction

School Sponsored Cocuricular Acliv¡ties - lnstruct¡on:
Salarles

Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total School Sponsored Cocun¡cular Ac{ivities - lnstruct¡on

School-Sponsored Athletics - lnslruction
Salarles
Purchased Services
Supplies end Mater¡als
Other Objects
Transfers to Cover Dencit (Agency Funds)

Total School-Sponsored Athletics - lnslruclion

Total lnstruction

or
(J¡

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
Forthe Flscal year Ended June 30,2016

Originat

Budqet

1,043,929

75,433
963

10,550

1,000

1,131,875

98,259
6,200

<^^

Budget

Transfers

(1 1s,l 8e)

0
963

(4,e00)

(2s0)

104,959 (104,959)

Ftnat

Budqet

928,740
75,433

I tJ¿O

5,650

,OU

(11e,376) 1,012,4ss

95,208

50,790
2.200

148,198

2,938.127

516,867
50,296

1,399

9,650

578,212

234,800
4,200

21,000
6,000

266,000

246,000
32,400
81,150
3,600

75,000

438,150

19,862,458

(e8,2se)
(6,200)

(s00)

Actual

915,754

69,645

1,108

3,586

Exhlblt Cl

(21.200\

(77,284)

4,O43

(40,000)
5,263

(3,s00)

(34,594)

54,835
19,773

53,412
645

Variance
Under(Over)

Final to Actuat

12,986

5,788

818

2,064
750

1,800
(23,000)

0

0

990,093 22,406

97,008 97,008 o
27,790 25,093 2.6s7
2,2OO 928 1,272

126.998

2,860,843

520,910
10,296
6,662
5,750

543,618

289,635
23,973
74,412

6,645

394,665

303,176
33,800

112,294
3,600

75,000

0

0

0

0

123.O29

2,820,809

s20,910
4,494
5,918

4,591

535,913

282,379
o,Yo¿

55,364

5,103

349,808

303,175
22,584

106,557

3,138

75,000

tzÕ,ooc

57,176
1,400

31,144
0

0

3,969

40,034

0
5,802

744
I,159

7,705

,,<co
17,O11

19,048

1,542

44,857

1

11,216
5,737

462
0

89,720 527,870 , 510,454 17,416

(422,501) 19,439,957 19,205,139 234,818 (continued)



Undistributed Expend¡tures - lnstruction:
Tu¡tion to Olher LEAS W¡thîn the State - Regular
Tu¡t¡on to Other LEAS Wthin the Stâte - Speclal
Tu¡tion lo Co. Voc. School Distrist - Regular
Tuitlon lo Co. Voc. School Distrist - Speclal
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools
Tultion to Pr¡vate Schools for the D¡sabled - Within State
Tuition - State Fac¡lities

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - lnstrucilon

Und¡slributed Expenditures - Aüendance and Social Work:
Salaries
Purchased Proessional & Technical Services
Supplies and Mater¡als

Tolal Undistributed Expend¡tures - Aflendance and Social Work

Undistributed Expend¡tures - Health Services:
Salaries
Purchased Pfofess¡onal and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Malerials
Other Objects

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Health Services

Undislr¡buled Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Sludents - Related Services:

Salaries
Purchased Professional-Educålional Services
Suppl¡es and Materials

Tolal Undistr¡büed Expend¡lures - Other Supporl Serv¡ces -
Students - Related Services

Undistributed Expenditu¡es - Other Support Services -
Students - Extraord¡nary Serv¡ces:

Salaries
Purchased Professional Educâtional Services
Supplies and Mater¡als
Other Objects

Tolâl Und¡str¡buted Expenditures - Other Suppol Sèrvices -
Sludents - Extraordinary Services:

oì
Or

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgefary Comparlson Schectule

General Fund
Forthe Flscal yeer Ended June SO, 2016

originar Budget F¡nar variance
Under(Over)Budget Transfers Budget Adual F¡nal to Aciuel

0

34,000
t9ô,481
32,000

475,000
940,558
32.306

1,710.345

89,440
32,000
3,725

1 25,165

253,575
37,100
9,850

35,925

95,240
1 1,000

(1s,540)
51,650
6f ,500

(2s3,850)

0 32,306 32,306

(50,000) 1,660,345 1,581,196

0

450
(4s0)

0

(23,000)

8,000

(7,e50)

(20,882)

1,900

(41,s32)

(73,000)

83,000
þ5

10,055

(60,000)

(18,3221

(7,700)
1,900

95,240
45,000

180,941

83,650
536,500
686,708

336.450

I 78,138

85,200
2,490

265,828

737,673
300,560

16,725

Exhlblt Cl

49,440
32,450
3,275

125.165

230,575
45,100

1,900

15,043

1,900

294,518

105,138

168,200

2,545

275.883

677,673
282,238

9,025

1,900

55,007

38,204
180,941

83,650
s19,010
672,078

87,360

s2,450
1,739

121,549

226,639

38,610
1,423
9,839

1,900

278,411

40,233
6,796

0

0

17,490
14,630

0

79,149

2,080
0

1,536

3,616

3,936
6,490

477
5,204

0

'1,054,958 . (84,122) 970,836 s43,512 27,324

104,004
157,329

637

16,107

1.134
10,871

1,908

13,913

1,152
¿ I,JJC

4,837
0

261,970

676,521

260,903
4,188

I,900

(continued)



Undist¡ibuted Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Sludents - Reguler

Salaries of Other professional Staff
Salar¡es of Secrelarial end Clericâl Assistants
Purchased Professional Educational Services
Other Purchased professional & Technical Services
Other Purchased Servlces
Suppl¡es and Materials
Other Objecls

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Serv¡ces _

Regular

Undislr¡buted Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Studenls - Special:

Salaries of Other Professional Slatr
Salaries of Secretar¡al and Clerlcal Ass¡slants
Purchased Professional Educât¡onal Services
Olher Purchased professional and Technical Services
M¡scellaneous Purchased Services
Suppl¡es and Materials
Other Objects

Total Und¡stribúed Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Students - Special

Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Serv¡ces -
lmprovement of lnslruclional Services

Other Salaries
Purchâsed Professional Educat¡onal Serv¡ces
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Suppl¡es and Mater¡als

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Services -
lmprovement of lnlructional Serv¡ces

Und¡stributed Expend¡tures - Educetional Media Services -
School L¡brary

Salaries
Purchased Profess¡onal and Technical Serv¡ces
Olher Purchased Serv¡ces
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Undislr¡buted Expenditures - Educaflonal Med¡a Serv¡ces -
School Library

Ol\¡

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICI
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Ended June 30, 2O,l 6

original Budger F¡nal var¡ance
Under/(Over)Budget Transfe¡s Budget Aciual F¡nal to Actual

805,091

154,121

880

3,744
4,800

28,750
T¿Ð

(20,000)

(20,000)

2,700
E05

I,000
(80s)

998,111 (36,300)

1,OO2,792

95,736
63,730
43,820

3,500
20,800

1,175

1,231,5s3

54,200
21,350

J,CYJ

1,400

80,545

143,034

24,200
12,735
48,500
17,',t21

245,590

785,091

134,121

3,580

4,549
5,800

27,945
T¿C

Exhlbit C-1

13,471

0

64,190
(27,4sol

(1,800)

690

200

774,390
126,O29

2,950

1,876

3,815
1 1,937

1,016,263

95,736

'127,920

16,330

I,700
21,490

1,375

49,261 1,280,814

0 54,200
(8,365) 12,985

0 3,S9S

0

(8,305) 72,180

50 67s

10,701

8,092

630

2,673
1,985

16,008

972,863

93,O42

123,776
13,670

otE

18,035

300

0
(3ss)
(214)

101

1 1,050

10,582

43,400
2,694
4.144
2,660

785
3,455

1,O75

1.222.601 4Â rr1

54,200
6,940 6,045
3,526 69

143,034

23,845
12,521

48,601

28.171

256,'t72

10,466

140pU
15,020

3,954

41,980
24,364

225,352

I,400

61,714

3,000
8,825

8,567

6,621

3,807

30,820

(continued)



Undistributed Expenditures - lnstrucilonal Staff Training Serv¡ces
Salâries of Supervisors of lnstructon
Salarles of Secrelarial and Clerical Assistanls
Other Selar¡es
Purchased p¡ofessional-Educational 

Services
Purchased professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Serv¡ces
Suppties and Mater¡als
Other Objecls

Or
00

Total Und¡stributed Expenditures - lnstructional Slaff Tra¡ning Srvc T5B.l37

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Ended June 30. 2Oi6

Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Support Services - Gen. Admin.:
Salar¡es

Legal Services
Audit Fees

Arch¡tectural/Engineering Services
Other Purchased professional Services
Communications/Telephone

BOE Other Purchased Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
BOE lN-House Tra¡n¡ng/Meeting Supplies
Miscellaneous ExÞenditures
Membershlp Dues and Fees

Or¡ginal
Budqet

646,643
51,562
7,950
6,750
1,300

38,916
3,350

1,100

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Support Serv¡ces - Gen. Admin. ZZO,44B 71,411 79lrgg3_ 789,706 2,156

Budget

Transfers

-

0

0

0

7,000
0

(21,382)

1,700
tÂ^

*,

2,920
1,797

(r,808)
40,509
(6,000)

30,388

100

9,036

(2,644)
(84)

(1,7o2)
(1,0e8)

Undislr¡buted Expenditures - Support Serv. - School Admin.:
Sâlar¡es of Principals/Ass¡stant princ¡pats

Salaries of Secrelarial and Clerical Assislants
Purchased Profess¡onal and Technical Servlces
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objecls

275,802
120,000

20,000
3l,000
6,000

99,146
1,200

135,500

5,175
325

6,000
20,300

Tolal Und¡sk¡buted Expenditures - Support Serv. - School Admin. 1,BOS,S2B 9625T 1 ,841 ,7SS 1,290,1 86 51,599

Final

Budoet

646,643

51,562

7,950
l? 7Â^

1,300

17.534
Ã 

^Ã^
2,416

746,205

278,722

12't,797

18,192
71,509

129,534
1,300

144,536
2,531

241

4,298
19,202

Und¡stributed Expenditures - Centrâl Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Technlcal Services
Misc. Purchased Serv¡ces (40GS0O ser¡es)
Supplies and Materials
lnterest on Lease purchased Agreements
M¡scellâneous Expenditures

Tolal Undistributed Expend¡lures - Central Serv¡ces

Actual

645,536

5,1,407

3,500

1,280
10,470

2,941
2.291

717,42s

278,722

121,670
18,192
69,482

129.534

1,300

144,535
2,531

241

4,298
19,201

Exhlbit C-l

Variance
Under(Over)

Final to Actual

1,107

155

7,950

f0,250

20

7,064
2,109

125

28,780

0

127

0
2,O27

0
0

^
1

0

0
n

1

I,051,238
578,392

700
102,748
58,250
14.200

357,927

24,OOO

32,000
12,300

7,800
800

â Ã^^

(600)

21,723
0

2,564
12,570

o 14,200 10,675

34,420
11,170
10,777

4BO

(1,500)

0
(736)

1,050,638

600,1 1 5

700

105,312
70,820

392,347

35,170
42,777
12,780
6,300

800

2,764

1,043,988

600,1 14
420

80,488

54,501

389,691

34,175
42,721

11,543

5,483

2,764

6,650

1

280
24,824
16,319
3.525

2,656

995

56

1,237

817

800

0

(continued)



Undistr¡buted Expend¡tures - Admln. lnfo Technology
Salar¡es

Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (4OO-5OO series)
Supplies and Materiats

Total Undisk¡buted Expenditures - Admln. lnfo Technology

Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Requ¡red Maint for School Facit¡fies
lnterest Eamed on Malntenance Reserve
Salaries
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Serv¡ces
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Undistr¡bded Expenditures - Required Maint for
School Facilit¡es

Undislr¡buted Expend¡tures - Operation and Malntenance
of Plant Services:

Salaries
Salar¡es of Non-lnstrucllonal Aides
Purchased professional and Technicål Services
Cleaning, Repâ¡r, and Maintenance Services
Other Purchased property Services
lnsurance

Miscellaneous Purchased Services
General Supplies
Energy (Natural Gas)
Energy (Etechicity)

Other Objects

Total Undistributed Expend¡tufes - Operation and Maintenance
of Plant Services

Undistr¡buted Expend¡lures - Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries
Purchased Professional & Technlcal Services
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Serv¡ces
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Care and Upkeep
of Grounds

or
f.o

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Encted June 30, 2016

Original
Budoet

247,O51

45,500
15,000
,to nññ

326.551

274J00
459,000
61,080

840

Budget
Transfers

(2,509)

9,270

30,510

(8,420)

28.851

0

5,972
(s3,7ss)

6,513

Final

Budoet

-

244,542
54,770
45,510
lô Âeñ

355.402

280,072
405,245
67,s93

840

795,020 (1,270) 753,750 728,822 24,s28

Actual

244,542
53,850
45,484
9.836

353.712

280,O72

388,592

59,783

693,969
224,400

69,500
86,600

172,000
6,658

187,000

293,600
932,600

Exhiblt C-1

Variance
Under/(Over)

Final to Actual

0

920

¿o

744

I,690

610 190

(18,000)

(1 1,34e)

4,549
(4,e80)

(33,722)

211

3,800
538

(e2,600)
o Ãlô

, 
^^^ 

o?7

222,616
1,300

10,200

57,000

3.850

294,966

675,969

213,O51

4,549
64,520
52,878

172,211

10,458

187,538

201,000

942,110
800

(141,853)

1,000
(200)

351,254
20,600

1.O72

0

0
16,653

7,810

465

669,230

208,705

3,589

s8,780
51,737

172,210
9,800

177,184
187,093

941,957

2,525,O84

223,616
1,100

361,454

77,600

4,922

373,726 668,692 631,767 36,925

'170 630

6,739

4,346

960

5,740
1,141

^Âc
10,354

13,907

153

2,480.455

222,8U

334,333
70,61s

3,955

44,629

752
1,100

27,121

6,985

vo,

(continued)



Undishibuted Expenditures - Secur¡ty
Purchased profess¡onal & Technical Services
Clean¡ng, Repair, & Maintenance Services
General Supplies

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Security

Tolal Operal¡on & Maintenance SeÍv¡ces

Undistr¡búed Expendilures - Student Transporlat¡on Servlces:
Salaries of Non-lnstruclional Aldes
Sal for Pupil Transp (Between Home and School)-Reg.
Sal for Pupil Transp (Between Home and Schoot)-Sp Ed
Sal for Pup¡l Transp (Other than Between Home & School)
Other Purchased professional and Technlcal Servlces
Clean¡ng, Repa¡r, and Malntenance Serv¡ces
Lease Purchase paymenls - School Buses
Contracled SeNices - (Betw Home/Sch) - Vendors
Contracled Services - (Other than betw Home/Sch) - Vendors
Contracted SeN¡ces - (Betw Home/Sch) - Joinl Agr
Conlracted Services - (Special Educal¡on) - Vendors
Contrasted Services - (Special Educat¡on) - Joint Agr
Conhacted Services - Aid ln Lieu of pâyments-Non pub Sch
Contracled Services - Aid in Lieu of payments-Charter
Miscellaneous Purchased Serv¡ces
Transportation Supplies
Other Objects

Total Undilr¡buted Expenditures - Sludent Transporlet¡on Serv.

lnterest Eamed on Cunent Expense Emergency Reserves

Unallocated Benefits:

Social Secur¡ty Contribut¡ons
Other Retirement Contributions - Regular
Unemployment Compensal¡on
Workmen's Compensation
Health Benef¡ts
Tuition Reimbursement
Other Employee Benefits
Unused Vac Paymenl lo Teßn/Ret Slâff

Total Unellocåted BenefÍs

\¡o

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Ended June 30, 2016

Or¡9¡nal

Budoet

197,830

4,200
15,400

217,430 3,017 220,447 202,237 ß,21O

3,974,353 193,620 4,167,973 4,049,281 ,t24,6g2

Budget Flnat
Transfers Budget

2,917 200,747
ouu 4,500
(200) 1s,2oo

225,299
692,925

1 90,1 43
66,000

1,700
50,000
50,000

28,605
39,070
2,325

48,000
28,800

1,768

112,210
361,093

90,009
37,500

(73,000)

(20,000)

3,500

51,400
(48,859)

10,000

30,000
(24,000)

0
(5,500)

0
(31,126)

(1 1 7,800)

Variance
Under(Over)

Actual F¡nat toActual

197,615

350

4,272

2,000 (600) 1,400

1,899,938 (9s,476) 1 ,804,462

Exh¡blt C-1

315,308

730,425
117,143
46,000
5,200

101,400

1,141

r0,000
58,605
1s,070

2,325
42,500
31,800

1,765
81,084

243,293

556,000
635,000

2,000
502,000

5,¿t49,466

72,300
384,.t45
85.880

0

7,000
41,400

0
(12,000)

(2e5,s61)
(26,ooo)

(l 01,s00)

315,308

726,499
111,402
43,332
4,500

101,249

9,450

53,875

11,066

42,118
30,056

79,933

235,936

¿to

3,132
4,150

10.928

7,686,791 (387,061) 7,299,730 7,105É52 194,178

0
3,926

5,741

2,668

700

151

1,141

550

4,730
4,004
2,325

382

1,744

1,768

1,15'l

7,357

1,124

0 85,880 69,366 16,514

1,765,000 39,462

563,000
676,400

2,000
490,000

5,153,505
46,300

282,645

559,627

669,696

1,16ô

488,482
5,005,662

42,825
268,728

0

3,373
6,704

834

1,518

147,843
3,475

13,917

(continued)



On-Behalf TpAF Non-Contributory lnsurance
On-Behalf TpAF pension Contr¡bul¡ons-post Retiremenl

Medical Contr¡butions (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TpAF Sociat Sêcur¡ty Contribdions (non-budgeted)

Total On-behatf Contr¡butions

Total Undistributed Expend itures

Total Cur¡ent Expense

Capltal Ouflay:
lnterest Deposlt to Capital Reserve

Equipment

Grades 1-5
Grades 6.-8

Grades g-12

School sponsored and other ¡nstructional programs
Undistr¡buted Expend¡tures:

lnslruct¡on

Suppporl Services - student regular
Cenlral Serv¡ces
Admln. lnfoÍmat¡on Technology
Und¡str. Expendilures - Cuslodial Services
Undislr. Expend¡tu¡es - Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Undistr. Expenditures - Secur¡ty
Undistr. Expenditures - Non-instructional equ¡p.
Undlslr. Expenditures - School Buses _ Soecial

Total Equlpment

Fac¡lities Acqu¡sit¡on and Conslruction Se¡vices
Architechlural/Engineering Services
Assessment fo¡ Debt Service on SDA Funding

Total Facillties Acqulsition and Construction Services

Total Capltet Ouflay

\¡
H

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Fiscal year Ended June 30, 2()l6

Original Budget
Budget Transfers

o o 4,926,729 g,s26,72g)

23,659,218 (261,137) 23,398,0E1 27,544,072 (4,145,991)

43,s21,676 (6S3,638) 42,838,038 46,74s,211 (3,e11,173)

Final
Budget Adual

3,800 (3,800)

0
262,000

7,000
15,144

28,225
5,200
2,550

180,604

38,300
95,207
36,602

4,000
94,000

1,564,533

1,8ô2,926

1.459.270

Exhlbit C.l

Variance
Unde¡(Over)

Flnal to Ac{ual

(1,s64,s33)

(1,862,926)

(1,499,270)

0

163,157

163,1s7

166,957

262,000
7,000

15,144

28,225
5,200
2,s50

180,604

38,300
95,207
36,602

4,000

768,832 768,832 725,281 €,551

0

0

246,589
3,000

12,708

19,125
5,140
2,550

180,603

38,202
87,s83
36,602

94,000 93,179 821

765,032 931,989

0

0

15,411

4,000

2,436

9,100
OU

0

1

oÂ

7,624
0

4,000

163,157

1 63,1 57

0
163,157

163,157

888,438 43,551

(continued)



Transfers to Charter Schools

Total Expendltures

Other Flnanclng Sources (Uses):
Prior year adjuslment

Total Other F¡nanclng Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Flnanclng Sources
Over Expendltures and Other Flnanclng Uses

Fund Balances, July.l

Fund Balances, June 30

!
N

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
Forthe Flscal year Ended June 30,2016

Original
Budoet

6,423

43.695.056

Budget

Transfers

0

81.394

0

(1,588,1s7)

9.295.200

$7.707.043

FINAI

Budqet

6,423

43,776,450

09

(81,394) (1,669,5s1)

9,295,200

(81,394) 7,625,649

Recapltulatlon of Fund Belence:

Comm¡tled Fund Balance:
Yeer End Encumbrances

Restricted Fund Balance:
Tu¡tion Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Emergency Reserve
Cap¡tal Reserve

Assigned Fund Balance:
Designated for Subsèquent yeafs Expendilures

Unessigned Fund Balance

Reconc¡liation to Govemmenlal Funds statements (GAAP):
Last State Aid Payment Not Recognized on GAAP Basis:

Fund Balance per Govemmental Funds (GAAP)

Aclual

-

47,637,649

Exhlbit C.1

Var¡ance
Under/(Over)

Final to Ac{uat

6,423

(3.861.199t

s8,7O7 58,707

58,707 58,707

(30,630) 1,638,921

9,295,200 o

_ 9,264,570 1,638,921

86,444

1,600,000

2,387,007
317,251

3,974,688

332,306
566,874

9,264,570

(1,407,402)

$7,857,1 68



REVENUES:

Local Sources:
Local Programs

Total - Local Sources

State Sources:
Preschool Education Aid
Nonpublic aid

Total - State Sources

Federal Sources:
Title I

l.D.E.A., part B
Vocational Education
Other

Total - Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnskuction
Purchased Professional, Technical and Educational Services
General Supplies

\j
(¡)

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal year Ended June 30, 2Ol6

Original Budget FinalBudget Tranifers Budget _Actual

t1

526,038
285,749

Textbooks
Other Objects

Total instruction

811,787

437,387
769,298
27,574
80.226

1,314,485

2,126.272

714,013
260,031
967,518
57,598
27,973

43,300

43,300

173,115

487,588
102,281

3,648
53,689

647.206

863,621

173,115

43,300 36,092

43,300 36,092

Exhibit C-2

Variance
Under/(Over)
Final to Actual

-

(7,208)

526,038
458,864

984,902

924,975
871,579
31,222

133.915

1,961.691

2,989.893

914,383
275,384

1,143,410
122,882
30,,t49

0
2.027j33

501,504
336,484

837,988

869,421
844,448
31,222

123.823

1,868,914

2,742,994

890,733
272,830

1,027,803
83,928
25,884

(7,208)

(24,534)
(122,380)

200,370
15,353

175,892
65,294
2,176

(146,914)

(s5,s54)
(27,131)

0
(10.092)

(e2,777)

(246.899)

23,650
2,554

1 15,607
38,954
4,265

185,030462,O10
2,935

2,48e,143 ---23oñ

(continued)



EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):
Support Services

Salaries of Other professional Staff
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased professional and Technicat Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and construction services
lnstructional equipment
Non-lnstructional equipment

Total facilities acquisition and construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

\¡Þ

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal year Ended June 30, ZO1 6

Original
Budqet

0
54,607
44,532

0
n

0
99.139

Budget
Transfers

0

2,126,272

44,950
147,838
90,217
69,287
8,487

Final
Budoet

0
0

44,950
202,445
134,749
69,287

8,487
11,06011.060

zs,zn - --m --@ --------sp-ãõ-

Variance
Under/(Over)

Actual Fìnal to Actual

839

14,572
15,200

470,978 414,199

Exhibit C-2

42,063
197,s05
105,878

53,771
7,476
7,506

863,621

14,572
15,200

2,989,893 2,742,994

14,572
1 0,1 10

3,554

246,899

-_--_--_---o-

0
5,090



Notes to the Required supplementary Information
Part II



Exhibit C-3
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Required Supplementary lnformation
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation
Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Note A - Explanation of Difference between Budgetary rnfrows and
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General Special
Fund Revenue

Sources/inflows of resources
Actualamounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the budgetary

comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAp in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized

Prior year
Current year

State aid payment recognized for GAAp statements in the

$47,548,312 2,742,994

current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 1,419,1g6 4g,6sg

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (1,407,402) (44,75g)

Total revenues reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds 47,560,096 2,747,557:

Uses/outflows of resources
Actualamounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows', from the

budgetary comparison schedule 47,632,649 2,742,gg4

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but ín the year the supplies
are received for financial reporting purposes

Prior year
Current year

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds _54T-,6!g?,649_ 2,743,692

638
0

638
0
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Required Supplementary Information
Part III



Exhibit L-l
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedules of Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS)

2015

District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

District's Proportionate Share of the Net pension Líability (Asset)

District's Covered Employee Payroll

District's Proportionate Share of the Net pension Liability (Asset)
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement system; District records

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.

0.07034519340/o

$15,791,096

$4,096,106

385.51%

47s3%
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Exhibit L-2
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedules of Required Supplementary lnformation part lll
Schedule of District Contributions

Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS)

2015

Contractually Required Contribution $604,780

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contríbution (604,780)

Contríbution Deficiency (Excess)

Dístrict's Covered Employee Payroll

Contríbutions as a Percentage of Covered Employee payroll

source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement system; District records

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred withín the fiscal year.

$0

$4,096,106

14.760/0
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Exhibit L-3
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedules of Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Teachers Pension Annuity Fund

2015

District's Proportion of the Net Pension Líability (Asset) 0.00%

District's Proportíonate Share of the Net pension Liability (Asset) $O

State's Proportionate Share of the Net pension Liability (Asset)
associated with the District $122,951,456

Total -,|**,*

District's Covered Employee Payrolf $20,445,991

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pensíon LÍability (Asset)
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll O.0O%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liabílity 2171o/o

source: GASB 68 report on Pubfic Employees'Retirement system; District records

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the
calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.
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Notes to the Required supplementary Information
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Required Supplementary fnformation part III
For the X'iscal Year Ended June 30,20L6

TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAFì

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 yearc of service or under the disability provisions
of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit, become vested for 2o/o of related interest earned on the contributions. In ih" 

"ur"of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members' accounts.

Change of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality
Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based
on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active members are projected using
Scale AS from the base year 2000 until the valuation date plus 15 years to account for future
mortality improvement. Post-retirement mortality improvements for non-disabled aruruitants are
projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for males and,2003 for females until the
valuation date plus 7 years to account for future mortality improvement.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIRMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Changes of beneJìt terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS
provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Alt benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions
ofPERS.

Change of assumptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP - 2000 Combined Healthy Male
and Female Mortality Tables (setback 1 year for females) with adjustments for -ãttulity
improvements from the base year of 2012 based on projection scale AA.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.



REVENUES:

Locâl Sources
SlâtE Sources
Federal Sources

Total fevenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Sala¡ies of leachers
Olher salar¡es of instructron
Purchased professionâ|, lechn¡cal and educational svcs
Other purchasêd seru¡ces
General supplies
Textbooks
Other objects

Total inslruction

Support sewiæs:
Salar¡es of other professional staff
Personal serv¡ces- employee benef¡ts
Purchassd profess¡onal and technical services
Other purchased serviæs
Travel
Supplies and materials
Other obiects

Total support seÍvices

Facilitles acquisiilon and construct¡on servfces
lnstruct¡onal equipment
Non-lnstruct¡onal equipment

Total facil¡tìes acqulsition and construction sery¡ces

Total expenditures

TowN oF HAMM.NToN scHooL DrsrRrcr Exh¡bit E-i

spec¡al Revenue Fund Page I
Comb¡n¡ng Schedule of program Revenue and Expenditures

,o* ,r. ,,r"ilInåi"iïIi r"n" .0. .0,,.
HEF HEF HEF

FY16MS FyloHS _ FYISHS Highschoot HEF HEF HEF HEF HEF HEFTeacher of the Teacher of the TeâcheÍ of the ñ* Ài1; Arts supply chromebooks Librâry chromebooks chromebooks Tubano orumsYear Grant year crant yeâr crant - ô;il".- crant' ' - -ËöÉõ.* 
wEs wES wES Middre schoor

$315 389 4g7 I,OOO 3,236 4,862 1,998 8,588 8,s83 3.957

-----1s- ------8, --------d ------T¡oo ----æ6- 
---¡æ- ----lpr -- B,EBB- - s,Eã, --- 3¡ç-

00o

1,348 1.348

315 389 497 I,OOO 1,035 4,862 7,240 7.295

1,260
-------315-----89-------4g7-1.ooo-_z2,5--4.86,---o_---_ã5ã8-8¡æ.--o

941

1.998

o o ---------i- 
-__ 

o --_-- 941 

-- 
o ---- 1',,s ------ o ------- o 

-_ 

o

3,957

0oo_--------o_---o--i----------i------o----ãF5,

$315 389 497 t,ooo 3,236 4,862 1,998 8,588 8,583 3,957



REVENUES:

Local Sources
Statê Sources
Federel Sources

Total rêvenues

EXPENDITURES:

lnstruction:
Salar¡es of teachers
Other salâries of ¡nstruction
Purchased professional, technical and educat¡onal svcs
Other purchased services

- General supplies
Texlbooks
Other objects

Total instruction

Support servic€s:
Salaries of other professional staff
Petsonâl services- employee benetits
Purchased professionâl and technic€l services
Other purchased sorvices
T¡avel
Supplies and materials
Other objects

Totâl suppod services

Facllities acquisltion and construction ssrvices
lnstructional equipment
Non-lnstructional equipment

Total facllitles acqulsifion and construct¡on serv¡ces

Total expenditures

TowN oF HAMM.NT.N scHooL DrsrRrcr Exhrbít E-,1

page 2
combininssched,ijïi"låì:ili:,|J,îulandExpend¡rures

FoR rHE "r"lliiiPrilii ,un" ,0, ,0,,

Home & School Home & Scho-ol HEF Walmart Bra¡n Totallnstructional supplv Nonlnstructional supPlv I-iuã.v Green nli"nä _Locâr Nonpubric --õ;Fi#ffi-r4 
--

EcEc Hish schoor wEí Grani ä;,' eì"0ì i;ffiiä Educarion EsL

590 963 92 g42 80 36.092

25,884 116,4,10 690

----- * 
-- 

Ybr ------- 92 ------w

00
ts

94'l

590 92 g42 s,622
8o Bo

EOn

3,957

o -__------- -- o 
-- 

o -------- o 

- 

3,,5?

590 963 92 942 80 36,092

116,410 690

25,884

- ,õ^BB4 

- 
1i6.¿iõ- ------ro

(æntinuei)



REVENUES:

Local Sources
State Sourcês
Federal Sources

Tolal revenues

EXPENDITURES:

lnstruclion:
Salar¡es of teachers
Other salar¡es of inslruction
Purchased professional, technical and educational svcs
Other purchased services
General supplies
Texlbooks
Other objects

Total instruct¡on

Support services:
Salarîes of other professional statf
Personal sèrviæs- employee benefils
Purchased professional and technical serviæs
Other purchased services
Travel
Supplies and materials
Other objècts

Total support services

FacilitÌes acqui6it¡on and constÍuct¡on seru¡ces
lnstruc{ional equipment
Non-lnstrucl¡onal equipment

Total facll¡tles acquls¡fion and construcfion servlces

Total expenditures

co
N

_ . . Nonpubl¡c Handicapped Aid
Examinat¡on & conGctivã----EÇþìãñãñiãi-
Class¡fication Speech tÅitruction

48,943 20,649 52.718

--- 4qr€-- --- ,0,6¡9- -----sãils-

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Speclal Revenue Fund

Combìn¡ng Schedule of program Revenue and Expenditures
Budgetary Basls

FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED June 30, 2016

48,943 20,649 52.718

4qrß- ---- ,q64' 
---sr,?ß

N.onpubtic Nonpubric Nonpubt¡c :!"""""1åi SljiJNurs¡ng Technolow Securitv À¡J 
- 

F'unds

46,928 12,194 12,068 501,504 E37,988

468ã- --l;,¡-r4 1ã¡¡s -jo1"s-04 aãi,rge-

316,805 316,805
117,626 117,626

239,410

,12,194 12,466 24,660
25,884

-- 
o -----12,114 ------- o ---a¿eBç- --- ?uñ

46,s28 54,607 54,607
46,928

1,958 i,gSB

468æ -----------o- -- lpse ---=4-¡o? - 1oq4r3

10,110 1o.ilo
--_o-------o--_-----o---------õ--------.0--]oJ1o--_o1qj1o-

4E,943 20,649 52,719 46,928 12,194 12,068 501,504 _ 837,988

carryover åiili
Titlel Tiilet Language
PartA partA Enhanærient

57,.196 I't2,225 45,807

----ãi¡¡A- --¡A¡æ - 4s,Bo?

41,509 487,916
112,853 42,351

199

50 9,656 2't6

1,675

-- lsse- 6112r, --- 42tr

7,210 34,853
4,536 124p23 3,240

230 35,389

892 1,004
2,769 4,657

rqõã -- 1re,rr6 -----f,zto

Exhibit E-l
Page 3

o o-- o

57,196 812,225 45,807



REVENUES:

Local Sources
Stâte Sources
Federal Sources

Total fevenues

EXPENDITURES:

lnstruct¡on:

Salaries of teachers
Other salaries of ¡nstruct¡on
Purchased professional, techn¡cat and eduætional sv€
Other purchased services
General supplies
Textbooks
Other ob¡ects

Total instruction

Supporl serviæs:
Salaries of olher professional staff
Personâl services- employêe benetits
Purchased protess¡onâl and techniæl services
Other purchased services
Travel
Supplies and materials
Othsr objects

Total support servÌces

Facilltles acqulslüon and constructlon seryices
lnstruct¡onal equ¡pment
Non-lnstructional equipment

00(¡)

Carryover Tiflo lll
T¡tle lll Languagè
Engl¡sh lnstfucl¡on

Language for lmmígrant
Enhanc. Students

TowN oF HAMM.NT.N scHooL DrsrRrcr Exhìbrt E.1

comb¡n¡ng sched,Ìjï';lå?:iä:lJ,lå 
"no 

;;"."" 
Paee 4

Budgetary Basis
FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED June 30, ZOi6

Caryover Carryover|.D.E.A |.D.E.A. I.D.E.A. t.D.Ê.Àparr-B parr-B parr-B Ë;-Ë T¡rreil "i,ï"",ïr perk¡ns ,]::?:,Basic Basic prèschoot pi""ànÃ Ëäno É;Ä vi",åi,år"l Funds Torats

36,092

__-_-_-_________- 
u::.r= 

_ 
810,681 8,s2e 23,774 1,464 66,731 4,568 31,222 1,868,914 ,, 33ã:3îj

44,503 s73,928 890.733
760,260 23,774 1,464 !s-s_'?g! 272,a3o

785,697 1,027,803
5,203 0 o20,607 35.732 æ,928

0 25,884
1,675 2,935------i- - 5203- ?6026õ- ---------õ- --- 2s,?T -- i,o64 ----¡"s03 

--- 

- ,q6o? 1ssr236 --o'o4jiu-

1,514 
50,421 8,529 

.t 1'099 42'm3 42,063
142,898 197,505

11,12s 4,s6s 3!:låB ,ZZ:.?ä

OO
1,896 7.476
7,426 7,506---------o -- 1514- ---n.421 

--8sr, 

-------i- ------o- --l¿ñ 
----is6g --------o ---io6.oô, 

414Jæ

Total facllities acquisltion and constructlon serulces 

-: 
-----o -- o :-- o

Total expenditures 0 6,717 Ero,681 8,529 23,774 1,464 66,731 4,568 g1,222 1,868,914 2]42,gg4

10,615 10,615 14.572
.t0,110

------ o 

-o 

-------- o ------- o ----io.61s -- io"6t5 
-r4ø



Exhibit E-2
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Special Revenue Fund
Preschool Education Aid Schedule of Expenditures

Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstruction
lnstructional Supplies

Total instruction

Support services:
Personal Services-Employee Benefits

Total support services

Total expenditures

Budgeted Actual

$338,805
117,626
15,000

Variance

316,805 22,000
117,626 0
12,466 2,534

471,431 446,897

54,607 54,607

54,607 54,607

$526,038 501.504

CALCULAT¡ON OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

Total Revised 2015-16 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $447,336
Add:Actuat ECPA Carryover (June 30, 201S) 178,995

Add: Budgeted Transfer from the General Fund 2015-16 O
Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2015-16 eu¿get---2SJ31-

Less: 2015-16 Budgeted Preschoof Education Aid(lncluding
prior year budgeted carryover) (526,039)

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2016 
-- 

99^6S3

Add: June 30, 2016 Unexpended preschool Education Aid 24,534
Less: 2015-2016 Commissioner-approved Transfer to the General Fund O

2015-16Carryover.PreschoolEducationAid/Preschool@

2015-16 Preschool Education Aid Carryover Budgeted for Preschoot Programs 2016-17 $99,693
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CAPITAL PROJEGTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.



Number

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Original
lssue/proiect Tifle Oàte Appropriations

Middle School HVAC 3,544,369

Middle SchoolWindow Reptacement 688,622

-ç¿;mTotals

æ
(.¡r

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital projects Fund

Summary Statement of project Expenditures

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses to Date

PriorYears - cuñõÌlãf Canceted

3,332,665 (109,721)

507,218

3,83e38t (109,721\ 0

Exhibit F-l

Unexpended
Balance

321,425

181,404

502329-



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital projects Fund

summary schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and changes in Fund Balance
Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20i6

Exhibit F-2

218

218

we,tzìt

(109,721)

l0g,g3g

236,323

$346,262

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
State School Building Aid - EDA Grant
lnterest earned

Total revenues and other fìnancing sources

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

. Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other financíng uses

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending
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Exhibit F-2a
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expendítures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budgetary Basis
Middle School HVAC

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

Revised
Authorized

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
State School Building Aid - EDA Grant
lnterest earned

2,040,758
I,503,611

2,040.,758 2,040J58
1,503,61 I 1,503,61 1

1 ,048 203 1,251

Total revenues and otherfinancing sources 3,s4s,417 2og 3,s4s,620 3,s44,36g

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchased professional & technicaf services 247,695 247,6g5 247,6gs
Construction services 3,084,980 (109,721) 2,g7S,2Sg 3,296;6S4

Total expenditures and other financing uses 3,332,66s (109,721) g,222,g44 3,s44,369

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses 212,252 1}g,g24 922,676 0

____$xzln- ____19e,931_ _____3n,675_ ______qr

Additíonal project information :

Project number 1960-060-14-1002

Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date N/A
Bonds Authorized N/A
Bonds lssued N/A
Original Authorized Cost 2,692,076
Additional Authorized Cost BS2,2g3
Revised Authorized Cost 3,544,369

Percentage lncrease over Original
Authorized Cost 31.66%

Percentage Completion 1OO%
Oríginal target completion date Bl2gt2T14
Revised target completion date Bt2Bt2O16
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Exh¡bit F-2b
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Capital projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Êxpenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budgetary Basis
Middle School Wíndow Replacement

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2Oi6

Revised
Authorized

Príor Periods Current Year Totals Cost

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
State School Building Aid - EDA Grant
lnterest earned

Expenditures and Other Financing Usesl

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services

246,871
283,298

55,718
451,500

246,871 246,871
283,298 441.751

620 l5 635

Total revenues and otherfinancing sources 530,7g9 1s s3o,go4 6gg,622

55,718 56,680
451,500 631,942

Total expenditures and other financing uses SOZ,21g

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses 23,571 15 23,586 o

$23,q71 15 23,586 o

Additional project information :

Project number 1960-060-14-1003

Grant Date
Bond Authorizatíon Date N/A
Bonds Authorízed N/A
Bonds lssued N/A
Original Authorized Cost 790,9ls
Additional Authorized Cost (102,293)
Revised Authorized Cost 69g.622

Percentage lncrease over Original
Authorized Cost -12.93o/o

Percentage Completion IOO%
Original target completion date Bl29tZO14
Revised target completion date 6tgOtZO16
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is
that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund - This fund provides for the operation of food services in all
schools within the school district.

Latchkey Ch¡ld Care Fund - This fund provides for the operation of school child
supervision.

THIS SECTION HAS ALREADY BEEN INCLUDED IN STATEMENTS B-4, B-5 AND 8.6.



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Gombining Schedule of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Food
Servíce

Latchkey
Program

98,105

Exhibit G-1

2016

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Receívable:

State
Federal
Other

lnventories

Total Current Assets

CapítalAssets:
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Totalassets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY:

Current liabilities:
lnterfund accounts payable
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences payable

Total current liabílities

Net Position:
Restricted
Unrestricted
lnvestment in capítal assets

Totalnet position

Total liabilities and net position

9641,252

1,050
60,689

1 ,133
6,264

739,357

1,050
60,689

1,133
6,264

710,399

747,880
(517,758)

98,105 808.493

119,467
(39,475)

867,347
(557,233)

230,122

940,510

79,992

____178,0W_

310.114

2,910

151 ,970 2,910 154,990

71,008
32,828
16,010
32J24

0
558,418
230,122

95,195
79,992

0
653,613
310,114

788,540

___qe40,q]!_

175,187 963,727

_1.,.1]_q602_

1,118,607

71,008
35,739
16,010

32J24

89

178.097



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL D¡STRICT
Enterprise Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net position

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30. 20f6

Food
Service

Exhibit G-2

Latchkev 2016

352,384
314,768
83,433
2,073

40,513

$352,384
314,768

2,073
40,513

83,433

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Daily sales- reimbursable programs
School lunch, breakfast, snack program

Daily sales non- reimbursable programs
Latchkey program revenue
Miscellaneous
Special Functions

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Tuition
Supplies & Materials
Depreciation
Cost of sales
Loss on disposal of asset
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:
State sources

State school lunch program
Federal sources

National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
National school snack program
Food Distribution Program

lnterest revenue

Total nonoperating revenues

Net income/(loss)

Net Postion, July 1

Net Postion, June 30

709,738

507,670
220,321

56,132
60,722

695,728
995

34,288

83,433 793,171

58,766 566,436
1,012 221,333
7,022 7,022
3,949 60,081
7,441 68,163

695,728
ooq

34,288

1,575,856 78,190

(866,r 18) 5,243

I,654,046

(860,875)

15,748

673,200
131,512

91

79,696
1,132 211

15,748

673,200
131,512

91

79,696
1,343

901,379

35,261

753,279

5,454

169,733

901,590

40,715

923,012

211

$788,540 175,187 963,727

90



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2Ol6

Food
Service

$712,757
(719,115)
(720,325)

Exhibit G-3

2016Latchkey

78,157
(70,251)
(11,431)

790,914
(78e,366)
(731,756)

Cash flows from operatíng activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from state

and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash (used) by capÍtal and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lnterest on investments

Net cash províded by ínvesting activities

Net increase (decrease) ín cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July I

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income/(loss) to net
cash provided/(used) by operating activities:

Operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income/(loss)

to cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on Disposal ofAsset
Federal Commodities
Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(lncrease) in accounts receivable
Decrease/(lncrease) in inventory
(Decrease)/lncrease in accounts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in interfund accounts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in unearned revenue
(Decrease)/lncrease in compensated absence payable

Net cash provided/(used) by operatíng activitíes

(726,683) (3,525) (7s0,208ì

813,920 813,920

813,920

(31,345)

813,920

(31,345)

(31,345) (31,345)

1,3432111,132

-- 1Jn

57,024 (3,314)

584,228 101,419

__s641252 _____98,Q!_

211 1,343

53,710

685,647

739,357

($866,1 18)

60,722
995

79,696

1,728
(3,102)

(1 1,10e)
5,092
1,291
4,122

5,243

7,441

1,947

2,450
(e,8ee)
(7,223)
(3,484)

(860,875)

68,163
ooÀ

79,696

3,675
(3,102)
(8,65e)
(4,807)
(5,e32)

638

9L

(726,683) (3,525) (730,208)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for
a specific purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments an/or other funds.

Student Activity Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student funds helc
at the schools.

Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions
of the school district.



ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities;
hccounts payable
Payroll deductions and wíthholdings
Due to student groups

Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Reserved - Expendable Trust
Unemployment
Scholarship

Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

277,194
48,102

Exhibit H-l
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Fiducíary Fund
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net position

June 30, 2016

Expendable Trusts
Student

Scholarship Unemployment payroll Total

$48,102 287,798 302,666 184,841 823,407

48,102 287,798 302.666 184341 823.407

10,604 10,604
184,841 184,841

302,666 302,666

10,604 s02,666 184,841 498,111

277,194
48,102

48,102 277,194 o

--_$cfl ?_ @ :_:--õzÉqe_-
0

184.841

92



Exhibit H-2
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Student Activity Agency Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net position

Balance Balance
July 1,2015 Additions Deletions June 30,2016

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivatents $309,345 854,032 954,711 302,666

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Due to student groups

Total liabilities

303,345 854,032 854,711 302,666

$303,345 854,032 854,711 302,666:

93



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Scholarship Expendable Trust Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Ghanges in Net Position

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

Exhibit H-3

2016

$103

103

3,700

3,700

(3,597)

(3,597)

51,699

$48,102

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:

lnterest on investments

ïotal operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Scholarship payments

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)

Net (Loss)

Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

94



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Unemployment Expendable Trust Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Ghanges in Net Position
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

Exhibit H-4

2016

$532
48.051

48,583

33,926

33.926

14,657

14,657

262.537

$277,194

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:

lnterest on investments
Contributions

Total operatíng revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payments of unemployment claims

Total operating expenses

Operating lncome

Net lncome

Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

95



Exhibit H-5

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

ECEC

Elementary School

Middle School

Middle School Athletícs

High SchoolStudents

High SchoolAthletics

Totalallschools

Balance
July 1, 2015

$25,323

22,995

63,070

576

170,805

20,576

Cash
Receipts

25,388

50,556

111,149

3,903

5ô9,1 58

93,878

Cash
Disbursements

28,366

48,844

113,578

4,450

565,330

94,143

Balance
June 30, 2016

22,345

24,707

60,641

29

174,633

20,311

$303,345 854,032 854,711 302,666

96



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30. 2016

Additions Deletions

14,609,744 14,445,751

Exhibit H-G

Balance
June 30,2016

184,841

-- 1U,841

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductíons
and withholdings

Total liabilities

20,848 14,609,744: 14,445,751

Balance
July 1,2015

$20,848

20,848 14,609,744 14,445,751

$20,848 14,609,744 14,445,751

184,841

97



LONG.TERM DEBT

The Long-Term Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the
general long-term liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding
and obligations under capital leases.



Refunding School Bonds

Refunding School Bonds

Refunding School Bonds 3t23t10

Reroofing & addit¡on
alterat¡ons to the
Middle School

7,050,000 8t1t16
8t1t17

8t1t18-22
8t1t23-24

a1n5
8t1t26
8t1t27
8t1t28
8t1t29
8/t/30

10,890,000 8t1t16
8t1t17
8t1t18
8t1t19
8t1t20
8t1t20
8t1t21
8t1t22
8t1t23
8t1t24
8t1t25

4l1slo6 2,614,000 7t15t16
7t15t17
7t15t18
7t15t19
7t15t20
7t15t21

6t24t10 11,800,000 7t1t16-20
711121-23

7t1t24
7t1t2t26
7t1t27_28

7t1tzS
7t1ß0

60,000 2.000%
25,000 2.000o/o

30,000 2.0000/o
35,000 2.OO0o/o

535,000 3.000%
I,170,000 3.000%
l,205,000 3.000%
1,245,000 3.1250/0

1,285,000 3.250%
I,305,000 3.2500/o

695,000 5.000%
735,000 S.OOQo/o

770,000 5.000%
810,000 4.2500/o
250,000 4.5000/o
605,000 5.000%
890,000 3.125%
925,000 3.250o/o
965,000 5.000%

1,015,000 4.250%
555,000 4.000%

185,000 4.25Qo/o

195,000 4.2500/0
200,000 4.2500/o
210,000 4.2500/o
220,000 4.3000/o
224,000 4.300%

550,000 3.500%
600,000 3.750%
600,000 4.000%
650,000 4.000%
700,000 4.000%
750,000 4.1250/o
800,000 4.1250/o

lssue lssue Date Amount Rate Julv l,20is lssued Retired Junê 30,2016

9/19/06 7,385,000 8nr16 200,000 3.250o/o 7,275,000 (7,050,000) 25,000 2OO,OO0

5111t16

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Long-Term Debt

t*"1I:"'1i,"jt011."*0"

Date of Amount of Annual Maturit¡es lnterest Balance

Exhib¡t þ1

Balance

7,050,000 7,050,000

8,875,000 660,000 8,215,000

I,414,000 180,000 1,234,000

9,900,000 500,000 9,400,000

-Tã2464p00 __------õ- -i¡æ¡¡¡- --ldõøõõõ-

Var¡ous lmorovements to
w'E.S. Elementary School

98



REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Lew

State Sources:
Debt Service Aid Type ll

Total _ State Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDlTURES:

Regular Debt Service:
lnterest

3 Redemption of principal

Total Regular Debt Service

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

oTHER FtNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Debt Service Fund
For the Fiscal year Ended June 30, 201 6

Original Budget FinalBudget Transfers Budget

384.285

384,285

2,467.862

Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures

Budgeted Fund Balance 
$O

0 384,285 384,285

0 384,285 984,285

0 2,467,862 2,467.862

1J02,862
1,365,000

2,467,862

2,467,862

0

Variance
positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Açlual

Exhibit t-2

o 1,102,862
0 1,365,000

0 2,467,862

0 2,467,862

00

0

fì

0

-

0

0

0

00000
$o- ---- 

-o- 

------i ----l- ----- 
1

0

1,102,861
1,365.000

2,467,861

2,467.861

,|

0

0

0

(1)

l1\

I

00
00

0 0



Statistical Section

Governmental Accounting standards Board (GASB) requires 10 years of
statistical information to be included in the CAFR. However duè to the

change in the statistical requirements information was unavailable for all 10 years.



Governmental act¡vit¡es
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities nel position

Business-type activities
Net ¡nvestment in capital assets
Reskicted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net Þosition

District-wide
Net investment ¡n cap¡tal assets
Restr¡cted
Unrestricted

ä Total district net position
o

--æo- --õõs - --æõt- -iõ10---ãõ.11- -lEitrL - 2013- --ñ_õìs__ _õì6*-
8,686,694

1 04,355
(5,02s,1 82)
3,765,867

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Net Position by Component,

Last Ten Fiscal years
Unaudìted

Source: CAFR ScehduleA-l

8,695,671
501,350

(3,248.442\
5,948,579

274,464

-+äiåi-##+ffi

1 9,768,759
6,098,093

(4.s62.7941
21,304,058

212,338

8,961, I 58
1 04,355

(4,767,164)
4,298,349

2s7,926

8,040,999 8,417,262
7,393,396 8,283,302

+Éffir+ffi+
168,986 147,804

611,144 710.498
--õõ'lãõ- ---s-5tu-õt

8,953,597
501,350

(2,940,679)
6,514,268

19,981,097
6,098,093

(4.124.5,t3\
2',1,954,677

8,693,209
8,342,783

(4,878.582)
12,157.410

256,944

8,209,985 8,565,066
7,393,396 8,283,302

#:+#+Jffi#r,

8,768,081
9,465,074

(5,958,393)
12,274,762

31 6,848

10,324,981
8,301,948

(4,433,909)
14,193,O20

8,950,153
8,342,783

(4,1 87,868)
1 3.1 05.068

12,924,O25
8,202,910

(17,77O.393\
3,356,542

J-1

266,964
140,000
542,246

___919¿19_

10,591,945
8,441,948

(3,891,663)
15,142.230

9,084,929
9,465,074

(5,335,9s5)
13,2't4.008

13,211,245
8,566,519

(1 8,940,740)
2,837.O24

310,114

653.613
963.727

13,521,359
8,566,519

(18.287.127\
3,800,751

347,927
50,000

525.085
923,O12

13,271,952
8,252,910

(17,245.308\
4,279.554



Expenses
Governmental activities

lnshuction
Regular
Special education
Other instruction

Support Services:
Tuition
Student & instrucfion related services
General administrative serv¡ces
School adminishative services
Business administrative services
Plant operat¡ons and maintenance
Pupil kansportalion

Capital Outlay
lnterest on long-term debt
Unallocated depreciation

Total governmental activities exDenses

Business-type activ¡ties:
Food serv¡ce
Child Care

Total business-type act¡v¡ties expense
Tolal disk¡ct exDenses

Program Revenues
Governmental act¡vit¡es:

Charges for services:
Tuition
Transpodation fees from other LEA,S

Operating grants and contr¡butions
Capital grants and contrìbut¡ons

Total governmental activities progr¿¡m revenues
Business-type activities:

Charges for services
Food service
Child ca¡e

Operating grants and contr¡butions
Capital grants and conhibutions

Total business type act¡vities program revenues
Total dislrict program revenues

Net (ExpenseyRevenue
Governmenlal activities
Business-type act¡v¡ties
Total d¡strict-wide net exoense

Þo
l-¡

--20-õ7-

17,826,984
3,895,1 99
1,032,040

657,085
4,191,705

908,488
2A86,401
1,159,896
3,219,932
1,067,345

1,439,113

37,884,1 88

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT J-2
Changes ln Net pos¡tion, Last Ten Fiscal years

Unaudited

_0õ____õõe__ro_ìõ___.ar_l=oþi;qL_20_îã__ãi___ro_ß____õ.16_

19'897,236 20,399,302 21,833,680 21,995,805 22,343,706 23,104,424 23,211,784 2s,340,075 23,616,7483,s1s,s16 3,616,0s7 g,6Bs,32B slrc,tsz 4l19,szo t,+zi,aiò 4,118,687 4,044,s10 3,s3o,B4z1,064'603 I ,237 ,852 1 ,338,591 1 ,126'267 1 ,4s0,845 r,szs,goé 1,544,098 1,742,035 1 ,8s9.616

783,618 689,630 627,344 820,226 i,11g,8S3 1,631,360 1,809,423 1,s72,518 2,240,7sE4,723,057 4,8e6,573 s,467,848 s,o6s;316 S,oss,¿ss a,cÀai,üá 6,248,s51 6]ss,710 6,502,es7971,266 1,060'88e s70,211 872,48',t 
- 
qro,159 'zss,gå6 908,255 890,705 2,535,6402'947,349 2,6s5,498 2,s28,115 2,652;66S 2,555,242 2,ss1"4sa 2,532,936 2,413,s52 s05,9761'161'158 1,294,613 1,r7s,8es 870:618 gg8,567 r,oro,esa 1,020,546 e7o,6eo 4,7e4,eso3'515'188 4,464,758 4'41s,125 4,639;128 !,214,054 e,gso,eé6 4,2ss,1s8 4,321,308 2,358,8231'856,207 1,899,215 1,939,813 t,grg,zos z.,oes,aoz z,tzs,áél 2,180,090 2,1e6,se7 1,428,241

1'031'09s 984,436 978,539 1,303,565 1,242,891 1,200,898 1,167,844 r,132,063 1,109,s65

x¡õqudl -ãlã;õr -7fu64-;is-'?- 
-s-04-ãìi--6866-,r1s- 4offiz- -4r,õ0ßu -4e¡--æ3d -@

1,243,655 1,154,383 1,217,002 1,269,475 1,328,841 1,401,364

-ì## --*!#l--#-.gtg .tgl,qgq' ãá,ãéd
1,235,176

42,701,469

7 ,211,854

-7ffi
717,065
1 09,467
416,430

1,286,606
44,465,499

7,729,233 4,879,173 5,484,'t98 5,474,420 6,026,604

-?,?zeãF- 4.Bm -s7B4JrB sr4iã720-- 6"0ãõ^6õA-

704,928 737,605 775,789 762,141 731.s0290,284 95,832 85,874 86,676 95,865462,285 534,146 612,206 649,340 741.431

1.350.979
46,715.476 +r#$8f+É33#

1,521,362
99,632

1,620,994
50,553.570

10,031,406
1 06,688

6,692,741

-6.s30-,És-

711,676
1 08,506
789,090

1,597,799
93.032

1.690.831
50.692.203

1,571,045
112,572

1,683,617
--5-TFõA;õãõ-:

10,368,696 9,854,615 10,157,368
89,274 72,947 94,37'l

6,204,617 6,115,780 5,604,529

-i 6^66t,s8-'- -i6-¡fq34t 1 s-Bs6:16B

722,274 695,274 709,738
116,366 117,173 83,433
860,941 843,s03 900,247

1,575,856
7n roñ

---r.:::_1,654,046
52,938,247

1þr3¡18
I 7,549,686:

(35,427,933)
39,372

(35,388,s61)



General Revenues and Other Changes ln Net pos¡t,"F
Govemmental act¡vities:

Property taxes levied for general purposes, net
Taxes levied for debt service
Unrestricted grants and contr¡butions
Tuition Received
Authorized bond proceeds
Transportation fees from other LEA,s
Premium on BANS
lnvestment earnings

Miscellaneous income
Canceled accounts payable prior year
Prior year adjustment
Prior year depreciation adjustment

Total governmental activ¡ties

Bus¡ness-type act¡vities:
lnvestment eamings
Transfers

Total business-type act¡vities
Total d¡striclwide

Change ln Net Postt¡on
Governmental act¡v¡t¡es
Business-type aclivities
Total district

Source: CAFR ScheduleA-2

Fo
NJ

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes in Net position, Last Ten Flscal years

Unaud¡ted

-7õõ8- 
---õñõ-

14,521,766
1,531,726
7,301,497
6,734,504

176,431

1,568,078

968.961
32,802,963

14,392

15,286,742 .t5,551,044

1,355,828 't,472,365
9,018,736 1 1,953,996
9,673,374 10,332,988

13,680,34.1
372,546 374,232

104,908 29,673
107,638 555,375

(2e4,81 s)

i4¡s' _ 1õ;8õã- -_ãþS¡-@7ñ EsEõ¡Se- s3,6se,1s2

-s-;r1õ7ãTg,6sãJdõ--2r;s-AiF8il-?"0-õlo8_a.o-'75æã-

15,754,360 15,873,706 15,868,258
'1,457,168 1,457,.168 1,457.168

12,612,680 11,993,921 13,328,842
10,935,928 11,004,932 10,763,744
(11,800,000) (1,380,341)

268,006 108,608 65.52E
86,725
82,818 136,986 122,s49

148,088 474,787 169.439
1,913 361.812

2,1s0,629
(4s,81 5)

-Zõ8õÉ-ì7,- 
-?ffiitr Taãqìo-il Tqäffiz,uüo,814 2,21s,e1s 1s,440,40e --(lO¡O¡¡¡Zl

10,886

J-2

--20'iã- 
- 2oì4 -- 2oi-- -ro-ìã--

16,147,974 16,212,385 16,506,429 16,506,429
. 

1 ,498,206 I,498,206 1,673,376 z,oes,siz
14,349,088 16,376,166 16,882;546 rs,sle.eoi

36,456 13,302 17,799 ,t7,502

184,997 156,984 190,592 323.3992'372 1'763 
s'.zo7

-ãÞìqõõ-@@For-g4e0-6;AE-

2,182,712 15,355,479 (10,332,613)

3,953

3s,207 84.e30:+

6,621

---6-Fãi-
29,554,307

9,906

9.906
41,060,014

12e,511
1,482.417

78.172--lF6õ¡er

10,943
40,768.342

(82,2'ts)
89,481

______1?99_

1 0,943 3,310 1,214

---øî
34,258,257

117,352
(8,412\

1 08,940

1,918,258 1,49s,384 (519,518)
9.964 126 1981 40,715--@-@ñ--lm¡õãr

1.469
35.273.974

1,469 1,343

-fia-
34,909,758



General Fund
Restricted
Assigned
Committed
Unass¡gned
Reserved
Unreserved

Tolal general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Restricted
Assigned
Committed
Unassigned

Þ Reserved

I Unreserved, reported in:w 
Special revenue fund
Debt service fund

Total all other governmental funds

2oo7 -----tõõB- --2õõe-- - 2o1o-

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Ten Fiscal years
Unaudìted

48,638
('1,47s,7O7)
(1,427,o6s1 E41.4zT

Source: CAFRSchedule B-1

623,123
318,301

_____911,424_

257,409

(8e,1 66)
34.288

3,884,621
(77s,s24\

3,1 09,097

-----70r-F --?6Fi- --iE?¡ãs- ---sr0-7ìt ::i¡-õa,or ---05Ftr ---lãrø 
-"trõ80- --18æ6r 

---¡;5æ-

72,632

(1 I 0,0s4)
s3,763

2011

5,706,667
(609,3s1 )

5,097,316

6,571,595 8,019,117

379,814 195,926
(361,174') (70s,662)

2,232,790

(4s,7s2)

nn- 
-2013-@- -20ì--- 2016-

6,590,235

1,697,081

14,626
(48,032)

1,737,244

(46,531)

7,505,381

8,080,045
1,057,814

82,586
(es4,e31)

161,833

134,027

8,225,s14

139,902

8,029,844
316,838

82,644
(7el,5e2)

J-3

7,951,568 8,278,946
300,000 332,306
85,195 86,444

(460,749) (840,528)

(44,734)
789,814

(48,658)
236,323

7,857.1 68

(44,733)
346,263



ReYenues
Tax tew
Tuition charges
TEnsportation fees from other LEA,S
Authorized bond proæeds
Premlum on BANS
lnterêst êam¡ngs
Mlscellaneous
Local sources
State sourêes
Federal soufces

Totâl revenug

Expendltures
lnstruct¡on

Regular lnstruction
Special education lnstruct¡on
Other instruction

Support Services:
Tultion
Student & instruction related servræs
Gensral adm¡nistrative sêrvlces
School Adminlstrative seilices
Plânt operalions and ma¡ntenanæ
Pup¡l lransportat¡on
Eusiness adminlstrativs services
Unâllocåted employee benefits

Capital outlay
Dsbt servlæ:

Princ¡pal
lnterêst and other charges

Total expendilures
Exæss (Deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Othor Flnanclng sources (uses)
PrÍor year adjustment
Canceled accounts pâyablg prjor year
Canceled bond proceeds
Capital leases (non-budgeted)
hctsase ln Maintenancê ReseÍve
Bond procêeds

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total otherfinancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund batancos

Debt sery¡æ as â peræntago of
noncapital expend¡tußs

Sourc€: CAFR Schedule B-2

2007 2oo' 2oos zo'to 201't zo12 2o1s ---,,J!- 2o1s 

- 

2oi6

FoA

16,053,492
6,734,504

176,431
1,568,078

12,995,729
1.513.622

39,045,856

. TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes ln Fu_nd Balances, Govemmental Funds,

Last Ten Flscal yeaF
Undudtted

16,642,570 17,023,40s 17^,?11,528 
.t7,33o,874 

17,s25,426,,911911 1o,3s2,eoo ro,sss,93a iì:óil:õäi ß,16s,744372,546 s74,zs2 zoe,oæ 'iõai6õã 
65,s2s

13.680.341

104,908
107,638

15,296,007
,1.451.962

43.649.005

13,632,222 14,263,014
2,641,398 2,411,048
737,417 789,801

444,086 530,8ô9
3,012,741 3,454.749
803,757 85S,373

1,742,670 2,048,926
2,844,734 3,096,687

844,777 1,428,176
936,446 91ô,767

8,52ô,050 9,270,24A
'1,791,581 1,240,699

464,953 624,953

--=,lõ#8i-+"P8ffii
(363,836) 1,682,303

86,725

_?9,67? 82,818 136,e86 122,s4ssss,37s 14g,os8 azc,zù ioõ,¿gg

19,199,193 r4,066,2ss rs,sz+jano rz,rããleos-ffi--+Éi#i--ffi--Æ
14,514,741
2,715,445

917,775

480,244
3,855,442

940,582
1,884,74A
3,981,895
1,480,764
1,044,682
8,526,385

12,1 98,1't0

ô49,953
1,005,23ô

54.196.002

4,633,185

(2e4,815)

15,737,602
2,768p22

984,650

430,965
4,288,327

838,312
2,055,120
3,868,452
.î,571,381

907,958
9,598,786

oaâ 7^a

643,953
976,798

45.654.994

1,174,978

1,913

315,003

93,176
(93,176)

316,916

28,500

500,000

84,287 92,107
(84,287\ (92,107\
28.500 500.000

______199! 339I ___ll¡? î!1

16,000,702
2,775,736

832,708

562,886
3,987,763

751,321
1,862,916
3,143,460
1,576,219

654,854
9,348,170
1,303,782

1,270,OOO

1,139.830
45,210,347

11,9!9,1!9 17,710,5e1 .t8,17e,805 
18,seo,oo610,911,199 r0,368,6e6 s,asr,ors ìó:it:ã6ãto6,68e Bs,2t4 lz,s¿z ' 

sqiái1

36,456
184,997
39,102

19,234.007
1,7õ8,721

49,047,557

15,988,102
3,1 14,831
1,096,932

1,064,5.16
5,019,181

659,991
1,707.374
3,172,144
1,738,335

722,338
11,260,668

484,015

15,953,026
2,991,466
1,034,069

907,174
4,508,703

683,550
1,769,602
3,319,292
1,720,327

715,728
10,440,306

725,O12

(294,81'',t

13,302 17,799
156,984 190,592
38,541 44,422

20,690,437 21,777,444

4.O7o/o

---låå3Ë8i--¡#ã3#i

__1999É29_ _ll9l,99t_ ____llÞ!Égl

1,3't4,181 565,860 5ô1,803

361,812 2,372
(1,380,341)

151,700

1,205,000 1,235,000 I,31O,OOO 1,33O,OOO 1,365,000-ffi --ffi --+ÉsHåî --+å:#i -Æ

16,429,630
2,996,318
1,102,996

1,216,54A
4,972,797

7aq aÊa

1,744,611
3,450,414
1,772,O24

740,424
11,233,264

1,970,512

3.94%

17,sO2
323,399

36,561
21,629,304
I a)7 z,t

52.775.733

17,292,906
2,820,809
I,396,175

1,581,196
4,876,964

789,70ô
1,832,249
4,O43,2A1
1,765,000

840,089
t z.z¿J, I ëo

803,399

818,799
(818,799)
151,700

17.030,103
2,833,375
1,311,181

1,375,645
5,025,883

77't,690
1,729,060
3,577,016
1,715,234

725,770
11,214,715
2,896,801

724,837 413,100
(724,837t (413,100)

(1,018,5291 2,372

_____É!ae99l ____g!1, r 75

5.310,/D 5,12%5.49Vo

17,3e8 (320,8e8)

1,763

1,953,850 1,167,967
(1,953,850) (1,167,967): -------ì7u--- sgtõ¡

____uÉ99_ ___1919J!9I ____9!p19_

5.100/0 4.95% 4.75a/o

36,312

58,707



J-5
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Transportation
FiscalYear lnterest on Tuition Fees from other

EICed June 30, lnvestments Revenue LEA's Misc. Total

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Source: District Records

176,431 6,734,504 1,568,078 8,479,013
104,908 9,673,374 372,546 107,638 19,931,840
29,673 10,332,988 374,232 555,375 11,292,268
82,818 10,935,928 268,006 148,099 11,434,840

136,986 11,004,932 108,608 474,787 11,725,313
122,949 10,763,7M 65,528 169,439 11,121,660
36,456 10,031,406 106,689 1g4,gg7 10,359,547
13,302 10,368,696 89,274 156,984 10,628,256
17,799 9,954,615 72,947 190,592 10,135,953
17,502 10,157,369 94,371 323,399 10,592,640
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Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30' vacant Land Residential Fa¡m Reg. Qfarm commerciat tndustr¡at Aparrment 

TolalAssssed 
a-tååî, rr"l:i" _r"*gr,!iri"* 

t"+"r"1iil'""

2007 19'674'500 s90,584,400 23,686,300 l,9g9,8oo '145,483,600 
?1,g31,70o 7,732,s0.0 814,083,200 1,332,300 3,778,874 816,s2s,742008 1e'334'600 607'801'soo zg,o¿g,ooo l'91?;990 t¿l,záal,loo 11,¡rz,aoo z,zaã,éòo sg¿,sos,aoo ziezs,roo 3,60s,816 83s,232,1r6200e i8,66s,200 614,622,s00 zs,oezi¿oo q,B!1;eo' rsg,io'iàóõ ?g,21s,4o0 z,zãã,õóo g+s,asz,sõõ ãioee,ooo 3,31o,e'e 844,462,88e2010 18,3se,200 617,744þ00 zs,osr isoo 9,ezz,ooo r so,¿ãóiìóõ zo,,zts.,too t,tsil,sóo 9es,ats,+oo zjssz,soo 3,4e0,780 Bso,3.r 3,6802011 '18'128'500 620,302,800 21,771,600 g,zzo,ooo rss,zão,iõó z9,7so,zoo z',tsz,goo s¿9,res,ooo àl,zza,eoo 3,os6,1sB Bso,o46,3s'2012 17'e2e'300 621'441,600 zz,sas,too q,oes'eoo rzg,ãoiiõõo 'tz,gzo',zoo z,ooã,2òo sez,ezoizoo -'e2',soo 

s,s28,262 B7o,020,0622013 17'881'600 626,431,400 zs,osg,ooo :'lq¡,iqq lzs,ìiá,ãõõ 11,1zo,zoo z,eoa,ãoo szo,zsz,soo s2s,zoo 2,ss4,44s 872,7o6,64s2014 17'158'800 62s,107,800 zt,171,sra !,e¿o,roo tzs'Ftil,ioo 1s,szo',zoo z,ooe,ãòo ezr,ozo,soo 22z,ooo 2,sso,3o' sz3,3s4,Bo'201s 2e's76'100 975,867,e00 ¿o,ses,zoo g,gis'1oo zos,zssisoo zl,ozs,roo rsiszs,ioo l,sss,¿zz,ooo 222,ooo a,e77,331 1,sss,z2t,ss12016 2e'106,200 s79,218,400 ao,ose,soo o,osq,soo ãos,oóiiãoõ ta,ooo,eoo ro,¿sg,¿oo r,gsz,lsi,zoó 1Fs7,131,700

Source: District records Tax l¡st summary & Municipal Tax Assessor

Real ProP€rly ¡s fequired to bê assessed at some pÊrcentag8 of trus value (fa¡f or market value) established by sach county board ofNote: tãation.

Reassessment occurs whên ordered by the County Board of Taxat¡on

a Taxable value of Machinery, lmplements and Equipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Mêssenger system companies

b Taxratesarêper$iOO

l-¡

Or

. TOWNOFHAMMONIONSCHOOLDISTRICT
Asqessed Valuè and Actual Value of Taxâble property,

Last Ten Fiscal years
Unaud¡ted

Total
Direct
School

Tax Rate
ù

Estimated Actual
(County Equatized

Value)

2.039 1,363,394,393
2.038 1,493,581,717
2.038 1,560,289.186
2.038 1,485,264,070
2.038 1,528,585,395
2.028 1,41.1,600,333
2.028 1,386,19s.699
2.082 1,324,214.087
1.367 1,349,929,444
1.404 1,337,470,878



J-7
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Rate per$100 ofAssessed Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Town of Hammonton Board of Education Overlapping Rates

Basic Rate a

General
Obligation Debt Total

Service b Direct

Town of
Hammon-

ton
Atlantic
County

Total Oirect and
Overlapping Tax

Rate
Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

1.873
1.872
1.865
1.867
1.867
1.856
1.856
1.890
1.214
1.269

0.166
0.166
o.173
0.171
0.171
0.172
0.172
0.192
0.153
0.135

2.039
2.038
2.038
2.038
2.038
2.028
2.028
2.082
1.367
1.404

0.755
0.760
0.761
0.765
0.769
0.825
0.875
0.905
0.624
0.653

0.513
0.519
0.559
0.562
u.oco
0.628
0.746
0.722
0.495
0.504

3.307
3.317
3.358
J.JOÐ
3.463
3.481
3.649
3.709
2.486
2.561

Note:

Source; District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

NJSA 184:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to
other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the
spending growth limitation calculation.

The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
Net valuation taxable.

Rates for debt service are based on each year,s requirements.
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201 6

Assessed Rank District Net Assessed Rank District NetTaxpayer value lopt¡onal] nssessãà vãìue Vatue loptionat] Assessed vatue

NJ Manufacturers lnsurance Company
Rt 206 tnc.
Kramer Beverage RE LLC

Atlantic Health Land Hotdings LLC
Wal-Mart RE Bus Trst
Copper Atlantic Commerce Holdings
Peachtree LLC

H Bellevue Property Group
òó Vision Property, Blueberry Crossing

Kramer Beverage Co. LLC
Alan Litt Exchange, LLC
FR Grand Avenue LLC
Rt 206 lnc
ARG Hammonton Holdings LLC
1001 GrandAveAssoc, Lp
Wal-mart RE Bus. Trust
Peachtree LLC
Bellevue Property Group
Vision Properties Blueberry Crossing

Total

TOWN OF HAMMONTON
Principal Property Tax payers,

Current Year and Nine years Ago
Unaudited

26,918,400
9,139,200
9,000,000
8,488,900
8,358,900
7,939,200
7,200,000
6,367,800
3,650,500
3,614,800

I
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

I
10

Source: District CAFR & Municipal Tax Assessor
District Total Taxable Value

1.98%
0.67%
0.66%
0.63%
O.620/o

0.58%
0.53o/o

O.47o/o

O.27o/o

o.27%

--ffi6,?o-o-

J-8

7,800,500
6,ô01,600
6,500,000
5,614,000
5,186,100
5,150,900
4,658,700
3,440,600
2,291,100
2,223,700

1

2
3
4
c
6
7
I
o

10

49,467,200

0.96%
0.81%
0.80%
0.69%
0.640/o

0.63%
0.57o/o

0.42o/o

0.28%
0.27o/o

rc



J-9
TOWN OF HAMMONTON

Property Tax Levies and Gollections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Collected within the FiscalYear of
the Levy

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

2007
2A0B
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Taxes Levied for
the FiscalYear

Percentage
of Levy

100o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100%
100o/o

100o/o

100%
100o/o

100%
100%

Collections in
Subsequent YearsAmount

16,053,492
16,642,570
17,023,409
17 ,211,529
17,330,874
17,325,426
17,646,180
17,710,591
18,179,905
18,590,006

16,053,492
16,642,570
17,023,409
17,211,529
17,330,874
17,325,426
17,646,180
17,710,591
18,179,805
18,590,006

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State
Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire properly tax
balance, which Ís the amount voted upon or certified pr¡or to the end of the school year.
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J-1 0
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal years

Unaudited

Governmentaf Activities

Fiscal
Year General Certificates
Ended Obligation of

June 30, Bonds b participation

Bond
Anticipation

Capital Notes
Leases (BANs)

1,246,554
372,816
125,214
341,965 7,100,000
353,143
238,429
146,484
50,317

Percentage of
Personal

Total District lncome "

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

23,287,859
22,662,906
22,012,953
33,314,000
32,544,000
31,339,000
30,104,000
28,794,000
27,464,000
26,099,000

24,534,413
23,035,722
22,138,167
40,755,965
32,897,143
31,577,429
30,250,484
28,844,317
27,464,000
26,099,000

Per Capita a

35,738
37,198
38,1 10
39,106
39,1s3
39,545
41,338
41,927
41,659
43,336

0.1460/o

0.161%
0.1780/o

0.098%
0.1260/o

0.134o/o

0.140o/o
0.147%
0.152%
0.166%

Source: DistrictCAFR Schedules l-1, l-2

Note: Details regarding the dist¡ict's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the f¡nanc¡al statements.

a See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income andpopulation for the prior calendar year.

b lncludes Early Retirement lncentive Plan (ERIP) refunding. Also includes funds in the amount of 96,600,000 used to I

Bond Anticipation Notes.
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J-1 1

TOWN OF HAMMONTON
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

LastTen Fiscal Years
Unaudited

General Bonded Debt Outstandino

Fiscaf
Year

Ended
June 30,

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

General
Obligation

Bonds Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

23,174,000
22,599,000
21,999,000
33,314,000
32,544,000
31,339,000
30,104,000
28,794,000
27,464,000
26,099,000

Percentage of
ActualTaxable

Value u of
Property

2.84o/o

2.71o/o

2.610/o

3.92o/o

3.83o/o

3.60%
3.46%
3.30%
2.02o/o

1.92%

Per Capita b

1,721

1,684 .

1,639
2,253
2,205
2,125
2,039
1,946
1,967
1,774

23,174,000
22,599,000
21,999,000
33,314,000
32,544,000
31,339,000
30,104,000
28,794,000
27,464,000
26,099,000

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fìnancial statements
See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
Population data can be found ín Exhibit J-14.

a
b

LLL



Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes
Town of Hammonton

Other debt
Atlantic County

Subtotal, overlapping debt

Town of Hammonton School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

F
H
N)

TOWN OF HAMMONTON
Ratios of Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As ofJune 30,2016
Unaudîted

sources: Town of Hammonton Finance otficer, Atlantic county Finance office

Note: overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overtalpiñg jovernments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of Hammonton. This process recognizes that, when ão-nsidering the District's ability to
issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses shoutd be taken
into account. However this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying
the debt, of each overlapping payment.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable
assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of anóther
governmental unit's taxable value that is within the district's boundaries and dívidiñg it by each unit's total taxable value.

Debt
Outstandino

15,232,104

155,437,199

J-12

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable "

100.00%

3.660/o

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

15,232,104

5,689,001

20,921,105

26,099,000

47,020,105

100.00%



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT J'13
Legal Debt Margin lnformation,

Last Ten Fiscal years
Unaudited

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Flscal year 2016

Equalized valuation basis
2015 1,335,616,438
2014 1,315,215,s7s
2013 1,312,072,818

rAt -3Þ6-ããõ'523F-

F
F
(^¡

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable to lim¡t

Legal debt marg¡n

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt lim¡t

Average equalized valuation of taxable property

Debt limit (4 % of average equalization value)
Net bonded school debt
Legal debt margin

2007

31,904,554

23,174,000

____LZg9.99l_

72.64%

2008

51,366,979

22,599,000

28,767,979

44.O0o/o

57,358,013

21,999,000

35,359.01 3

38.35%

tA/31

tBl
tct

IB-CT

1,320,968,412

52,838,736

2010

59,620,835

33,314,000

26,306,835

55.88%

Fiscal Year

60,462,261

32,544,000

27,918,261

53.83%

2012

58,715,336

31,339,000

___?zÉ29.9!g_

53.370/o

2013

57,352,146

30,104,000

27,248,146

52.49o/o

2014

54,542,599

28,794,000

25.748.599

52.790/o

2015

53,257,474

27,464,000

__251s3,47!_

51.57o/o

2016

52,838,736

26,099,000

26,739,736

49,39ø/o



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL D¡STRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudíted

Per Capita
Personal

lncome"

J-14

Unemployment

RateoYear Population "

13,464
13,463
13,420
13,433
14,784
14,761
14,750
14,766
14,713
14,619

Personal
lncome

(thousands of
dollars) b

523,857
536,219
529,164
535,104
612,593
624,129
627J26
629,442
626,405
633,496

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

35,739
37,198
38,110
39,106
39,1 53
39,545
41,338
41,927
41,659
43,336

7.20%
7.20%
8.90%

15.60%
16.00%
16.20%
16.80%
8.40%
8.30%
8.10%

Source:
a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b Personal income is calculated by multiplying per capita income by the population
b Per capita lncome us Department of commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

tL4



Rank 
Percentage of 

Rank 
Percentage of

Emplover Employees (optional) Employment Employees (optional) Employment

F
ts
LN

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

_ Principal Employers,
Current year and Nineyears Ago

Unaudíted

2015

Source:
GASB requires this table to present the principal taxpayers for the current year and nine years ago, however the information was not avaitable.

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
I
o

10

2006

J-1 5

0.00%
0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%



Funct¡on/Proqram

lnslruction
Regular
Special education
Other special education
Vocational

Support Services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related serv¡ces
General adminsitrative services
School administrative services
Business administÍat¡ve services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportat¡on

Food Service
Child Care

TotalF
H
or

2007 2008 2oo9 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Full-time Equ¡vatent Dtstrlct Employees ny funciùniRrogram,

Last len Flscal years
Unaudìted

Source: D¡strict Personnel Records

202.O
64.0

1.0

206.0 213.0 21g.O 208.0 203.6 191.0 199.581.0 95.0 96.0 86.0 62.0 66.0 60.0
13.0 9.0 8.01.0 1.0 LO 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

49.5
4.O

22.5
9.0

28.0
37.0

18
1

----36- ----266- _Eda- _-E- ---.48:- ---_-iõõ- -----rE- ------9r- 
==OA- 

--_rõ_:-

36.0 42.o 4s.o 42.0 65.4 B3.o4.0 6_5 6.0 4.8 3.0 3.031.0 32.s 33.0 24.o 24.s 24.s9.0 11 .5 1o.o B.o 9.0 1o.o42.5 47.5 45.5 44.0 44.6 44.237.5 36.5 41 .O 39.0 4o.o 42.017 19 19.5 19.5 19.0 19.0144444.0

199.5 199.5
60.0 60.0
8.0 B.o2.o z.o

82.0 82.0
3.0 3.0

24.5 24.5
9.5 9.5

44.3 44.3
42.0 42.0
21.O 21.0
3.0

82.0
3.0

24.5
Y.O

44.3
42.O

21.O
3.0



F¡scal Operafing Cost per percentage Teaching StaffYear Enrollmenta Expenditures b pupil $.Ld_ " elementary

2007 3,284 36,445,075 11,098 -0.86%2008 3,266 40,435,198 12,381 11.s6%2009 3,395 42,194,457 ,tz,qZe 
0.39%2010 3,434 44,385,958 ,tz,szs 
4.OOT|2011 3,551 43,738,546 tz,s,tz 4.70o/o2012 3,567 45,636,878 12,7s4 3.87%2013 3,605 47,731,678 13,240 3.48%2014 3,629 47,833,528 13,181 _o.45{o

2015 3,601 48,688,400 13,521 2.580/o2016 3,630 50,174,636 13,822 2.2s%o

FÞ\¡
Sources: Distr¡ct records, ASSA and Schedules J-lZ, J-14

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count.

a Enrollment ¡s based on the annual October d¡strict count.b operating expenditures equal total expend¡tures less debt service and capital ouflay; Schedule J-2c Teach¡ng staff includes only fu[-t¡me equivalents of certificated staff.d Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS).

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT J'17

Operafing Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal years

Unaudited

pupil/Teacher Ratio
Average

267
288
309
310
296
281
268
270
¿IV
270

Mrddre .".?ik", ïi'"itåi:lr % chanse ¡n srudent

schoor ¡r¡gr, scr,oor 6piil 'ö;';' 
T"lt"r:Îit åi:åiü:

1:15
1:15
1:15
l:15
'1,4 4

1i15
1:15
1:15
1:15
1i15

1i12
1i12
1:12
1i12
1:12
1i12
1:12
1i'12
1i12
1:12

1:14
1i14
1"14
1:14
1:14
1i14
1:14
1:14
1i14

3,294
3,265
3,362
3,420
3,s21
3,540
3,595
3,623
ó,oõþ
3,627

3,071

3,057
3,143
3,179
3,280
3,312
3,352
3,419
3,386
3,416

-2, toao
-0.89%
2.97%
1.73%
2.95%
o.54%
1.55%
o.78%

-1.05%
1.17%

93.22%
93.63%
93.490/0

92.95%
93.16o/o

93.56%
93.24%
s4.37%
94.45%
94.18%



J-18
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

School Bu¡ld¡ng lnfofmatíon
Last Ten Flscal Years

Unaud¡ted

Dastrict Buitdino 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2011 2015 2016

Earlv Ch¡ldhood Learnlno Center
(2001)
square Feet 35,365 35,365 35,365 3s,365 3s,g6s 35,365 gs,36s 3s,965 3s,36s 3s,365capacity(studenrs) 500 500 5oo 5oo 5oo 5oo 5oo 5oo 5oo 5ooEnrollment 497 .199 418 432 451 408 413 383 384 972

Elementarv
(r973)
square Feet s7,240 97 ,24o gz,z4o 97,z4o 9z ,24o 97,240 97 ,z4o 97 ,z4o gt ,240 97 ,24ocapacity(srudents) 1,464 1,4d4 1,464 1,464 1,464 1,464 1,464 1,464 1,464 1,464Enrollment 846 648 Bo9 B4o s7g 907 933 979 962 g2g

Míddle School
(1e65)
square Feet 109,950 109,950 1o9,9so 109,950 1o9,9so log,gso log,gso 1og,gso 1o9,9so 1o9,9socapacity(students) 1,604 1,604 1,604 1,604 1,604 1,604 1,604 i,604 i,604 1,604Enrollment 648 816 849 827 B1t B2g 916 917 868 926

Hioh School
(20021

square Feet 190,641 190,64l i9o,64i 190,641 190,641 190,641 t9o,64l l9o,64t 190,641 190,641
capacity(students) 1,850 1,850 l,Bso l,Bso l,Bso 1,8s0 1,Bso t,Bso i.Bso 1,8s0
Enfollment 1,293 1,303 1,319 1,335 1,415 1,427 1,449 1,450 1,9A7 1.409

Other
Transportation

square Feet 8,000 8,ooo B,o0o s,ooo B,ooo B,ooo I,ooo B,ooo s,ooo B,o0o

Number of Schools at June 30. 2016
Early Leaming Center = I
Elementary = 1

M¡ddle School= 1

High sdlool = f

Source: Dístrict records, ASSA
Note: Year of original construct¡on ¡s shown ¡n parentheses. lncreases ín square footage and capac¡ty are the

result of add¡tions. Enrollment ¡s based on the annual October district count.
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school Facilities Project # (s) 2oo7 

- -gg- 
?oo9 -],o1o 2oll-- 2012 2oJ3- zo14 2o1s 2016tt-lsñsc-ñoor--Ëos4-f -ffiil -13-4F5- -afu -.,o,Ëu ,fr,^d- -ffiî Éìõr -wø.ãFdd_ _m*_Middle school N/A sg,tez zs,ees téø,zza s¿,ret Tio,tt 278',213 zoo,tsz 101,463 76,Bes 27s,677Elementary school N/A 49',470 eo,sro ìo¿,rer so,¿¿o 74,101 sz,ss¿ 61,900 82,776 82,863 1o7,gg2Earlv childhood center sP99343 ls,osz 25'.8g2 os,szo 3z,sss 3B,1BB s4',277 io,zdq 72,212 4g,s24 48.227

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund

schedure of Required Maintenance for schoor Facirities
Last Ten years

Unaudìted

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
I 1_000_261_XXX

ts
tsro

Total School Facilities

Other Facilities

Grand Total

227'342 307'518 - 754,416 335,375 509,199 613,638 472,941 519,203 635,878 728,822

227,342 307.518+ _:,:__ _Js4Aß_ __99s,375_ __soql!g_ __q_9,639_ _422,s41 __g1g¿gg- __63sÉZq_ __l2l,sn

J-1 I



J-20

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
lnsurance Schedule

June 30, 2016
Unaudited

Coveraoe Deductible

New Jersey School Boards Assoc. lnsurance Group -
Cape May Atlantic lnsurance pool

Property Package
Environmental Package
Extra Expense
Valuable Papers
Business lncomeÆuition
ËDP
Equipment Breakdown

General Liability

Automobile Liability

Auto Phys. Damage

Workers' Compensation and Supplemental lndemnity
Workers' Compensation Part #1
Employers' Liability P art #2

Each AccidenUEach Employee/Limit by Disease

SchoolLeaders Erors and Omissions Liability
Coverage A
Coverage B

Surety Bond - RLI lnsurance Company
Business Administrator - Barbara S. prettyman

Source: District Records.

121,179,152
1,000,000

50,000,000
'10,000,000

10,700,000
500,000

100,000,000

16,000,000

16,000,000

ACV Basis

Statutory

2,000,000

6,000,000
100,000/300,000

25,000

5,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000
5,000

1,000

10,000
10,000

t20
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NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A P rofes s io nøl Ass o ciatío tt

C e rtífied P u b lÍc Acco u nt o nts
991 S. Black Horse Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton School
District, in the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education of the Town of
Hammonton's basic hnancial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 17,2016. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audítíng Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, and State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reportinq

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's internal control
over f,rnancial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Hammonton Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deflrciencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements

will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

EXIIIBIT K-l

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245
www.colavita.net
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
parugraph of this section and was not designed to identi$' all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deflrciencies or mateiral, weaknesses. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed two instances of noncompliance, or other matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item labeled Finding 2016-1.

Town of Hammonton Board of Education's Response to Findings

Town of Hammonton Board of Education's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Their response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integrul part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Town of Hammonton Board of
Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLTNGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA' PA%
Raymond Colavita, CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant

No.915
November 17,2016

A P rof essío na I Asso c iotío n
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NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA
A P rofes sio ttsl Ass o ciaÍion

Ce ft if Íe d P u b l¿c Acco u nta nts
991 S. Black Horse Pike

P.O. Box 799
Williamstown, NJ 08094

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE

OF Ð(PENDITTJRES REQUIRED BY THE T]NIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS,
COST PRINCIPLES AND AT]DIT REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE) AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AI]DITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Rerrort on Compliance for Each Maior Federal and State Proqram

We have audited the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton School District, in the County of Atlantic, State of
New Jersey, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and
the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Town of Hammonton School District's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,2016. The
Town of Hammonton Board of Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal and state programs.

Auditor's Resnonsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's
major federal and state compliance based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to frnancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Adminístrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, Uniform
Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Hammonton Board of
Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Town of Hammonton Board of Education's compliance
with those requirements.
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Opinion on Each Maior Program

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton School District, in the County of Atlantic, State of
New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 16.

Report on Internal Control Over Comnliance

Management of the Town of Hammonton School District's Board of Education is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to major federal and state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Town of Hammonton
Board of Education's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal or state program in order to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Hammonton School District Board of Education's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
manag€ment or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material wealcness

in internal control over compliance is a defrciency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance;
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
or state program will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a major federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, signif,rcant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identiff any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above or any instance of deficiency in internal
control over compliance that we have to report to the Board of Education in a separate report entitled Auditors'
Mønagement Report on Administrøtive Findings-Financial, Compliance and Perþrmance datedNovember 17,2016.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance and New Jersey

oMB 15-08.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Town of Hammonton
Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, other state awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, PA
4W

Raymond Colavita, CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant

No.915
November 17,2016

A P rofessio n aI Assoc iotio n
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Town of lfammonton School District
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30,2016

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
include federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Town of Hammonton School
District' The Board of Educatiott it defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial
statements. AII federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as
well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is
included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOTINTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on
the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service
fi'md, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are
described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements.

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAp
basis' Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) aie presented for the general fund
and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related iegal 

-compliance 
in which certain

revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized, in the audit year, whereas for
GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when éxpenditures have
been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with
the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year,
which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. f'or GRAp purposes that payment is noi
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recordìng of the last
state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis *hi"h recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related rèrr"rrrr"r, whereas the GAAp basis
does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the current
budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. IBA:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from budgetary basis to GAAP basis is $11,784 for the gêneral
fund and $3,925 for the special revenue fund. See the following schedules and Note 1(E)9 for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. There are no differences in the reporting of the food service or debt
service frrnds. Awards and financial assistance revenuer ar" reported in the Board's basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

CIAL STA
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30,20L6

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (çONTINTJED)

General Special
Fund Revenue Fund Total

State Assistance:
Actual amounts (budgetary)
"revenues" from the Schedule of
Expenditures of State Financial
Assistance

Difference - budget to "GAAP"
Grant accounting budgetary basis

differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as
expendifures, and the related revenue
is recognized.

The last state aid payment is
recognized as revenue for budgetary
pulposes, and differs from GAAP
which does not recognize this
revenue until the subsequent year
when the State recognizes the related
expense (GASB 33).

Total State revenue as reported on the
statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund
Food Service Fund

Total Awards and
Financial Assistance

$20,391,322 837,988 2r,229,310

3.925 15,709

Federal

$58,139
1,g69,og3

gg4,4gg

State

20,403,106
g4l,gI3
384,285

15,749

Total

20,461,245
2,710,996

384,285
900,247

s2ß1tJ2t 21.64s0s2 UA
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Town of Ifammonton School District
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30,20L6

General Special
Fund Revenue Fund Total

Federal Assistance:
Actual amounts (budgetary)
"revenues" from the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards $58,139 1,868,914 1,927,053

Difference - budget to "GAAP"
Grant accounting budgetary

basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as

expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Total Federal revenue as reported
on the statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund
balances

169 t69

$58,139 1,869,083 1,927,222

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related

federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year

value received and current year distributions, respectively. The amounts reported as TPAF
Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the district for the

year ended June 30, 2016. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount

reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF
members for the year ended June 30, 2016.

NOTE 6. SCHOOLWIDE PROGRAM FUNDS

Schoolwide programs are not separate Federal programs as defined in OMB Circular A-133;
amounts used in schoolwide programs are included in the total expenditures of the program

contributing the funds in the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. The district does not
operate any schoolwide programs.
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EXHIBIT K.6

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2016

Section I - Summarv of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic
financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Unmodified

yes X no
none

yes X reported

ves X no

yes X no
none

Yes X reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section .516(a)
of Uniform Guidance? yes X no

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10.553. 10.555 16161NJ304N1099 Child Nutrition Cluster
84.027 H0274150100 IDEA Part B Basic
84.173 H17341"50114 IDEA Part B Preschool

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750.000

Unmodif,red

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

r30
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EXHIBIT K.6

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O16
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Internal control over major programs:

X yes

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

yes X no

none
yes X reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJOMB
Circular Lefler l5-08

Identification of major programs:

yes X no

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

16-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
16-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
16-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
16-495-034-5120-068 School Choice Aid

16-495-034-5120-096 Under Adequacy Aid

16-495-034-5120-098 PARCC Readiness Aid

16-495-034-5120-097 Per Pupil Growth Aid

16-495-034-5120-014 Transportation Aid

16-495-034-5120-086 Preschool Aid
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EXHIBIT K.6

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016
(continued)

Section II - X'inancial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, mater¡al weakness, fraud, illegal acts, violations of
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for
which Government Auditinq Standards and with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey that requires reporting in the
Uniform Guidance, New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 audit.

Findinq: 2016-l(AMR Findins 2016-l)

Criteria or specific requirement:
The New Jersey Department of Agriculture requires a School Food Authority to maintain a nonprofit
School Food Service. The nonprofit status of the School Food Service is determined by evaluating
net cash resources, which may not exceed three months average expenditures.

Condition:
Net cash resources in the Food Service Fund exceeded three months average expenditures.

Context:
Utilizing the USDA net cash resource calculatíon form, it was determined the District's net cash
resources exceeded three months average expenditures by $92,634, as of June 30, 2016.

Effect:
The New Jersey Department of Agriculture requirement regarding Net Cash Resources was not met.

Cause:
I nadvertent oversight.

Recommendation:
The District should implement a corrective action plan to effectively reduce the net cash resources
on hand in the Food Service Fund through capital expenditure or otherwise.

Management's response:
Management is aware of the necessary procedures to be updated and followed.
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EXHIBIT K-6

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O16
(continued)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the audit findings requ¡red to be reported by 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the
Uniform Guidance Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 15-08, as applicable, for State Financial
Assistance.

FEDERAL AWARDS

Findine: NONE
Information on the federal program:
Criteria or specifTc requirement:
Condition:
Questioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Management's response:

STATE AWARDS

Findine: NONE
Information on the state program:
Criteria or specific requirement:
Condition:
Ouestioned Costs:
Context:
Effect:
Cause:
Recommendation:
Management's response:
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EXHIBIT K-7

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2016

This section identifies the status of prior - year findings related to the basic financial statements and
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, US OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Princíples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards section .511(aXb) and New Jersey
OMB's Circular 04-04 and/or 15-08, as applicable.

STATUS OF PRIOR - YEAR FINDINGS

There were no prior year findings.
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